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2011 2010
4,768, 0005,509, 290
1,000,0001,203, 000
1,029,600 748, 732

6, 797,6007,461, 022

3,076, 0002, 566, 667

573,600 748, 732

3,649, 0003, 315, 399
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The dirzctors submit their report together with the audited consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2011.

Principal activity

CSOP Asset Management Limited (the “Company®™), which is licensed by the Hong Kong
Securities and Futures Commission io camy out Type 4 {advising on securities} and Th’F{"—_‘ g
{asset management) regulated activitias as set out in Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Securities

and Futures Ordinance, acts as the maneger for itis own managed funds. The aclivily of the
subsidiary is et out in note & to the financial statements.

Results and appropriations

The results of the Company and its subsidiaries (together, the "Group”) for tha year are set out
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page 7.

The directars do nat recommend the paymant of any dividand.

Property, plant and equipment

Details of the movemeants in property, plant and eguipment of the Group are sat out in note 5 o
the consolidated financial statements,

Share capital

Details of share capital of the Company are set out In note 11 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Reserves

The movements in the reserves of the Group during the year aré set out in the consalidated
statemant of changes in equily on page 8.

Directors
The dirsctors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

DING Chen

ZHANG Gacbo

GAD Liangyu

QN Changkui
DESCOURTIEUX Banoit
QIL Guelu

BAOQ Wen Ge

There being no provision in the Company’s Aricies of Association for relirament by rotation, all
directors continue in office.
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Direclors’ interests in contracts

Mo contracts of significance In refation to the Group's business of which the Company, any of ils
fellow subsidiary or its parent company was a party and In which a director of the Company had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any tima
during the year,

Directors' interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company

Al no ime during the year was the Company, its fellow subsidiany or its parent company a party
lo any arangemenls o erable the directers of the Company (including their spouses and
children under 18 years of ages) o hold any interesits or short positions in the shares or
underlying shares in, or debentures of, the Company.

Management contracts

Mz conlracts conceming the management and administration of the whele or any substantial
part of tha businass of the Company ware antered into o existed during the year,

Auditor
The tinancial statements have been audited by PricewaternouseCoopers who retire and, being

eligible, offer themaehres for re-appointment,

On behalf of the Board

Hong Kong, 29 February 2012
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

ASSETS

Mon-current assels

Property, plant and equipment

Available-for-sale financial assets

Financial assets at fair value through profit er loss
Daferred tax assets

Current assets

Amount due from immediate holding company
Trade and other receivables

Financial assets at fair value through profii or loss
Tax recoverable

Cash and cash equivalants

Total assets

EQUITY

Equity attributable to owners of the parent
Share capital

Other reserves

Retaired eamings

Mon-controlling interests
Total equity

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities

Trads and cther payables
Cument income tax liabilities
Accrued charges

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

r

Mote

5
7
3(a), 8
4(b)

15
3(a)

10

1
12

3Ha)
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Az at 31 December

2011 2010

HKS HKS
1,067,283 1,075,043
28,367,280 7,768,400
109,088,892 40,257,150
24,715 :
136,548,170 46,111,593
20,750,091 13,001,703
9,063,138 21,072,972
63,533,764 144,577,305
478,580 :
121,814,514 165,622,678
215,640,085 344 274 658
352,188,255 393,385,251
200,000,000 200,000,000
{300,861} £58 261
79,004,814 72,688,696
278,793,953 273,156,957
22450817 43,120,675
301,244,870 316,277,632
11,847,728 20,019,804

: 2,354,660

842,132 920,211
38,253,525 53,814,144
50,043,385 77,108,619
352,188,255 393,386,251

The accompanying notas form an integral part of these financial statements.

-5
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET

As at 31 December

2011 2010
MNote HEE HKS
ASSETS
Nen-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 5 1,087,283 1,078,043
Investment in subsidiaries 6 95,221,158 182,079,063
Available-tor-sale tinancial assets 7 26,367,280 7,768,400
Financlal assets af fair valug through profit or loss 8 109,088,892 40,267,150
Deterred tax assets 4{b) 24,715 -
231,765,328 231,190,656
Current assets
Amount duc from immediate holding company 20,750,081 13,001,703
Amount due from subsidiary 355,595 328,042
Trade and other receivables 3,666,271 2,381,884
Tax recaverable 478,580 -
Cash and cash equivalents 10 30,021,871 34,102,504
55,272,408 49,814,133
Total assels 287,041,737 281,004,789
EQUITY
Equity attributable to owners of the parent
Share capltal 1 200,000,000 200,000,000
Other reserves 12 7,613,383 7,345,947
Retained eamings 71,117,992 65,675,333
278,701,375 273,021,280
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 7,468,230 4,708,638
Current income tax liakilties - 2,354,660
Accruad charges 842,132 820,211
Total liabilities 8,310,382 7,983,509
Total equity and liabilities 287,041,737 281,004,765

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

“BGa
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMEMT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Revenue

Other incoma

Other gains/{losses)

Realised gains on available-for-sale financial
assals

Administrative expenses

Operating profit

Finance income
Finance costs

Profit before income tax
Income tax expense
Profit for the year

Profit attributable to:

Equity holders of the company
Men-controdling interast

Other comprehensive income:

Currency Iranslation differences

Change in value of available-for-sale financial
assels

Other comprehensive income for the year,
net of tax

Total comprehensive income for the year
Attributable to:

Equity holders of the company
Non-controlling inferest

Total comprehensive income for the year

Year ended Year ended
31 Decamber 31 Decembear
2011 2010
MNote HES HK$
48,346,380 50,856,145
1,317,930 1,457,120
Sla) 1,261,603 {5,488,635)
3,301,396 -
(46,180,954) (32,247 ,528)
8,046,424 14,377,102
2,615,024 1,842,766
(43,558) (13,752)
10,618,782 16,306,116
A{a) (3,976,441) (285,139)
6,842 351 16,010,977
6,406,118 19,460,870
236,233 (3,449,693)
8,642,351 18,010,977
(653,919} (7,498)
(240,318}
{894,235) (7.496)
5,748,116 16,003,481
5,636,996 19,885,000
111,120 {3,331,525}
5,748,116 16,003,481

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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CSOP ASSET MAMAGEMENT LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IMN EQUITY

Balance at 1 January 2010
Comprehensive income
Profit{loss)

Other comprehensive income
Currency translation difference
Total other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income

Transactions with owners
Issue of shares

Total transactions with owners

Batance at 31 December 2010

EDINETOOOO
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Share Other Retained COMino

capital rESEVeS earnings Total inte

HIKS HIS HKE HiKE I

200,000,000 43,822 53,228,026 253,271,948 46,419,

- - 18,460,670 19,460,670 (3,448,

- 424 330 - 424,330 {431,

- 124,339 - 424,339 (431,

- 424,330 19,460,670 19,885,008 {3,881,

5 4 - 882,

- - . - 582,
200,000,000 4BB*EE1I 72,688,696

273,156,957

43,120,

The accompanying notes form an integral part of theze financial statements
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONTINUED)

Balance at 1 January 2011
Comprehensive income

Profit

Other comprehensive income
Currency translation difference
Change in value of avallable-for-zale
financial assats

Total other comprehansive income
Total comprehensive income

Transactions with owners
Redemption of sheres

Total transactions with owners

Balance at 31 December 2011
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)

Shara Other Retained contra
capital reserves zamings Total inte
HKE HKS HKS HKS I
200,000,000 468.261 72,688,696 273,156,057 43,120,
5 - 5,406,118 &,408,118 23E,
- (528,806) - {528,806) 125,

- (240,318) - (240,318)
- (769,122} 6,408,118 5,636,396 111 .I
z - - - (20,780,
- - - - {Eﬂ.?ﬁ'{!.;
200,000,000 (320,861) 739,084 814 278,793,953 ;.45;

The accampanying noles form an integral part of these financial statements.
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Yoar ended Year endad
31 December 31 December
2011 2010
MNote HES HKE
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from cperating activities 13 75,079,132 184,926,162
Interest paid {43,556) (13.752)
Income tax pald (6.,834,386) (10,248,560)
Met cash generated from cperating activities 68,201,180 174,663,850
Cash flows from Investing activitics
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (660,530) {875,823)
Interest received 3,053,380 1,491,577
Proceeds from sales of non-current financial
assels at fair value through profit or loss 44 475 127 .
Acquisition of avaflable-lor-sale financial assets (15,637 800) {7, 768,400)
Acquisition of non-current financial assets at fair
value through profit and loss (123,372,208) (38,500,000)
Met cash generaled used in investing activities (92,042,051) (45652,646)
Cash flows from financing activities
Dividand receied B13,585 1,350,869
Procesds from Issue of shares - 582,879
Payment for redemption of shares {20,780,878) -
Net cash (used injgenarated from financing
activilies (19,967 293) 1,933,748
(Decrease)/increase in cash and cash ;
equivalents (43,808, 184) 130,944,952
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 165,622,678 34,677,726
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 121,814,514 165,622,678
Analysis of the balances of cash and cash
equivalents
Cash at banks 121,812,175 165,622 243
Cash in hand 2,338 435
121,814,514 165,622 678

Thea accompanying notes form an integral part of these financlal statements.
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
General information

CSOP Asset Management Limited (the "Company”™) provides asset management
senvices under the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

The Company is a limited liability company Incorporated in Hong Kong. The address of
iis registerod office is Sute 2802, Two Exchange Square, 8 Connaught Place, Central,
Hong Kong.

China Sauthern Fund Management Co. Lid., a company incorperated in the Peopla's
Republic of China, Is the immediate and ultimate holding company.

Thess consoclidated financial statements are presented in HK dollars ("HKS™), unless
otherwise stated.

Summary of significant accounting policles

The principal accounting policies appled in the preparation of these consolidated
hnancial statemenis are sat cut below, These policles have beon consistently applied to
all the yaars presented, uness otherwise slated,

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financlal Reporting Standards ("HKFRS®). The consclidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as medified by the
available-for-sala financial assats, and financial assats and labiities (including derivative
instruments) al far value thraugh profit or loss.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS reguires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. it also requires management o exercise iis
judgamant in the process of applying the Group's aczounting policies.

(s}  Mewand amended standards adopted by the Group

The Group has adgopted the following new and amended HKFRS az of 1 January
2011:

HKFRS 3 (Aavised), “Businass combinations®, and consequential amendmants to
HKAS 27, “Consolidated and separate financial staterments”, HKAS 28,
“Imvastments in associates”, and HKAS 31, “Interests in joint ventures®, are
effective prospectively to business combinations for which the acquisition date is
on o after the beginning of the first annual reporing pericd beginning an or after
1 January 2011.

HKFRS 3 [Revised), the revised standard continues to apply the aoquisiiion
method lo business combinations, with some significant changes comparad with
HKFRS 3. For example, all payments to purchase @ business are o bo récorded
alt fair valua at the acquisition dale, with contingent payments classified as debt
subsequently re-measured through the statemont of comprehensive income.
Thera |s a cholce on an acquision-by-acquisition basis 1o measure the non-
controlling interast in the acquiree either at fair value or at the non-cantrolling
interest’s proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets. All acquisiion-related
costs should be expensad. The amendment will nat result in a material impact on
the Group's consolidated financial stalerments.

S
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

{a)

New and amended standards adopled by the Group (Continued)

HEAS 1 (Amendment), “Presentation of financial statemments”. The amendment is
part of he HKICPA's annual improvemaents projact published in May 2010, The
amandment providas clarification that the potaential settlement of a liability by the
issue of equity is not relevant to its classification as current or non-currert. By
amondng the definition of current lfability, the amendment permits & lability to be
classified as non-current {provided that the entity has an uncanditional Aght to
dafer setlement by transfer ef cash or other assets for at least 12 months after
the accounting period) notwithslanding the {acl that the entity could be required
by the counterparty to sattle in shares at any time. The amendment will not result
in & material impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements,

Aevised HKAS 24 (revised), "Related parly disclosures”, issued in Movember
2010, It suparsades HKAS 24, "Related parly disciosures®, issued in 2003, HKAS
24 (revised) is mandalory for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011,
Earlier application, in whale or in pan, is parmitted. The revised standard clarfies
and simplifies the definition of a related parly and removes the requirement for
govarnment-refated entiies to disclose delails of all transactions with the
government and other govermment-relaled entities, The Group has not aarly
adopted HKAS 24 (revised) and the directors of the Group expect HKAS 24
(revised) will nat have a material impact on the Group's consobdated financial
statemenis.

HKAS 27 (Revised), "Consolidated and separate financial statemenis” (effective
fram 1 July 2010}, The revised standard requires the effects of all fransactions
with non-controlling Interast to be recordad in equity it these is no change in
contral and these transactions will no longer result in goodwill or gairs and
losses. The standard also specifies the accounting when control is lost. Any
ramaining Interest in the entity is remeasured fo {air value, and a gain or loss is
racogniaad in profit or loss. HKAS 27 (revised) has had no impact on the current
period, as none of the non-controlling interests have a deficit balance; there have
been no transactiens whereby an interast in an entity ie retained after the ioss of
contral of that entity, and there have been no transactions with non-controling
interasts,

HKAS 28 (amendment], “Impalrment of assets”, effective 1 January 2011, The
amandment clarifies that the largest cash-generating unit (or group of units) to
which goodwill should be aliccated for the purposes of impairment testing is an
operating segment, as deflined by paragraph 5 of HKFRS 8, "Operaling segments”
i{that is, before the aggregation of segmenls with similar  economlc
characterigtice). The amendment will not result in a mataral impact on the
Giroup's consolidated financlal statemants.

-1z2-
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.1  Basis ol preparation (Continued)

(B} Standards, amendments and interpretations 1o exisling standards thal are nol
atfective on 1 January 2011 and have not been early adopled by 1he Group

HKFRS 8, “Financial instruments”, issued in November 2010, This standard fs tha
first step In the process lo replace HKAS 39, "Financial instrumenis: racognition
and measurement”. HKFRS 9 inlrcduces now requirements for classifying and
measuring financial assels and is likely to affect the Group's accounting for its
financial assels. The standard is not applicable unt! 1 January 2015 bul is
available for early adopfion. The Group has not early adopted the HKFRS & and
the directors of the Group expect that HKFRS £ will not have a material impact on
the Group's consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 10, "Consolidated financial stetements” bullds on existing principlas by
identifying the concept of contrel as the determining factor in whether an antity
should be included within the consafidated financial statements of the parent
company. The standard provides addiional guidance to assist in the
determination of control whers this is difficult to asscss. The Group & yet to
assess HKFRS 10°s full impact and Intends to adopt HKFRS 10 no later than the
sccounting period beginning on or after 1 January 2013,

HKFRS 13, "Fair value measurement” aims to improve consistency and reduce
complexity by providing a precise definition of fair vaiue and a single source of
fair value measurement ard disclosure requirements for usa across HKFRS, The
requirenents do not extend the use of fair value accounting but provide guidancs
an how it should be applied where its use i3 already reguired or permitted by
other standards within HKFRS. The Groug Is yet to assess HKFRS 1%s full
impact and intends lo adopt HKFAS 13 ag later than the accounting period
beginning on or after 1 January 2013,

HKAS 38 (Amendment), “Intangible Assets” (eftectiva fram 1 July 2010). The
amendment is part of the HKICPA's annual improvements project published in
May 2010 and the Group will apply HKAS 38 (Amendment) from the date HKFRS
3 {Revised) is adopted. The amendment clarifies guidance in measuring the fair
value of an infangible assat acquired in & business combination and it penmits the
grouping of intangible assets as a single asset # sach asset has simiar usaful
economic lives, The amendment will not resut in a maleral impact on the
Group's consalidated financial statements.

2.2 Consolidation
(a) Subsidiary

Subsidiary is an enfity over which the Group has the pawer to govern the
financial and operating policies generally accompanying & sharcholding of more
than one half of the voting rights. The existence and effect of potential voting
rghts that are currentty exorcizable or convadible are considered when
asgessing whether the Group controls another entity. Subsidiary is fuily
consolidated from the dale on which control is transferrad to the Group. They are
de-consolidated from the date thal contro! ceases.

13-
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED

MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
Consolidation {(Continued)

(@)  Subsidiary (Continued)

The Group uses the acquisition method of accounting to account for business
combinations. The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is
the falr values of the assets wansterred, the liabilities ncumed and the equity
interests issued by the Group. The consideration transfered includes the fair
value of any asset or jiabllity resulting from a cortingsnt consideration
arrangement. Acquisition-related cosis are expensed as incured. Identifiable
assels acquired and fiabiitles and contingent llabilites assumed in a business
combination are measured initally at their fair values at the acquisition date. On
an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group recognises any nen-contralling
interast in the acquiree either at fair value or at the non-controiling Interest's
proportionate share of the acquires’s net assals,

Investment in subsidiaries is accounted for as financial asset st fair value through
profit or loss and stated at fair value in ascordance with HKAS 38 “Financial
Instrument: Recognition and Measuramant®.

Inter-company tranzastions, balances and unrsallsed galns on ransactions
between Group companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated.

{t)  Associates

Associates are entiies over which the Group has significant influsnce but nat
eontrol, generally accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the
voting rights. lnvestmenis in associates are accounted for using the aquity
method of accounting. Under the equity method, the invesiment is initially
recognised at cast, and the carrying amount is Increased or decreased to
recogrise the investar's share of the profit or inss of the inveatse after the date of
acquisition. The Group's investment in asscciates includes goodwill identified on
acquisition.

If the ownership interast in an associate is reduced but significant influerce is
retained, only a proportionaie share of the amaunts previcusly recognised in
other comprehensive income is reclassilied to profit or loss whers apprepriate.

The Group's share of post-acquisition profil or loss is recogrised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, and its share of post-
acquisition mavaments in olher comprehensive Income s recognised in other
comprehensive incaome with a comesponding adjustment to the carrying amount
of the investment. When the Group's share of losses in an associate squals o
exceeds iis interest in the assoclata, including any other unsecured receivabias,
the group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred lagal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

- 14-
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CS50P ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

(E)

Assaciates (Continued)

The Group determines at each reporting date whether thare is any objective
avidenca that the invesiment in the associate is impaired. If this is the case, the
Group calculates the amount of moairment as the difference between the
recovarabla amount of 1he associate and ils carrying valug and recognises the
amourt adjacent to “share of profit/flogs) of associates” in the consolidated
statement of comprahensive income.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downsirearn fransactions batwean
the Group and ils associate are recognised in the Croup’s financial siatements
only to the extent of urmelated investor's Interests In the associates, Urrsalisad
losses are eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impaimment
of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been changed
where necessary [0 ansura consistancy wilh the policies adopted by the Group.

The Group has imvested in certain imvestmant funds thal it manages. As an
investment manager, the Group may put seed capital In investmant funds that it
manages n order to faciitate thelr launch. The pumpase of seed caplal s o
gnsure that the nwestment funds can have a reasonable staring fund size to
oparate and to bulld rack recond. The Group may subsequenthy vary the holding
of these seed capital Investments depending on the markst conditions and
various other factors. The Group has applied the scope exclusian within HKAS 28
“Investments in Associates” for mutual funds, uni trusts and similar entities and
such investments are classifled as financial assets at fair value through profit or
foss,

2.3  Foreign currency translation

()

(b}

Functional and preseniation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of sach ot the Group's entities are
measured using the currency of the primary economic environment In which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”). The consoiidated financial statements
are presanted in HK dollars, which is the Company’s functional and the Group's
presantaton currency.

Transachons and balances

Foreign currency fransactions are translated into the functional currency using
the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation where
items are re-maasured, Foreign exchange gaine and lossas resulting from the
selilement of such transactions and from the transiation at year-end exchangs
rates of monsetary assets and liahilitiss denominated in forsign currencies are
recognised in the consoidated statement of comprehensive income, except when
deferred in equity as qualifying cash flow hedges and gualifying net investment

hedges.

=15-
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of significant accounting policies {Continued)

Forsign currency translation (Continued)

(L)

(e

Transactions and baiances (Continued)

Translation differences o ron-monetary financial assets and liabilfies such as
equities hald at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss as
part of the fair value gain or loss. Translalion differences on non-monetary
firancial assets such as eguities classified as available-for-sale are included in
oiher comprahansive income.

Faraign exchange gains and losses ihat relate to borrowings and cash and cash
equivalents are presented In the consolidated statement of comprebensive
income within “finance income or costs”. All other foreign exchange gains and
losses are presented in the consclidated statement of comprehansive incoms
within “other gains/{lozsas)”,

Changes in the fair value of menetary securities dencminated In foralgn currency
classitied 65 avalable-lor-sale are analysed betwsan ranslation differences
resulting from changes in the amonised cost of the security and cther changes in
the camying amount of the security, Translation differsnces related to changes in
amortised cost are recognised in profit or less, and other changes In camying
amaunt are racognised in other comprehensive income.

Translation diffarences on non-monetary financial assets and liabilities such as
eguities held at fair valua through profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss as
part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation differences on non-monetary
financlal assets such as cquities classitied as availabla-for-sale are included in
other comprahensive income,

Group companies

The resulls and financlal pasition of all the group entities (nene of which has tha
currency of a hyper-inflationary economy) that have a funclional currency
difterent from the presenlation currency are translated into the presentation
currency as Tollows:

() assels and fhabiities presented are translaled at the closing rate at the
waar and date;

{1y income and expenses are ranslated at avarage exchange rates (unbess
this average Is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case Income and
expenses are transiatad at the rate on the dales of the transactions); and

{iify  all resulting exchange differances are recognised in othar comprehensive
income.

On consolidation, exchange differences ansing fram the translation of the net
irvestment In foreign operations are laken to other comprahensive income. When
a foreign operation is partially disposed of or sold, exchange differences that
were recorded in egquity are recognised in the consofidated statement of
comprehansive income as part of the gain or loss on sale,
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMNCIAL STATEMENTS
Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is slated &l kstoncal cost less accumulated depreciation.
Historical cost includes axpenditure that is directly atiributable {0 the acoulsition of fhe
items.

Subseguent costs are included In the asset's camying amount or recognised as a
separate asset, as appropriate. enly when it is probable that fulure economic benefits
azsociated with the itern will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
rehably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecogrised. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive incomea
during the financial perfad in which they are incurred,

Depreciation Is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost or revalued
amoums to thelr residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Leasehold improvemants olvet lease tarm
Office equipment 3 -3 years
Fumniture and fidures 5 years

The assels’ residual values and usafu! lives are reviewveed, and adjusted it appropriata, at
the and of sach reporting perdod. An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately
to its racoverable amount if the asset's carmying amouni is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.

Gains ard losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the
carrylng amount and are recognised within other gainsf{losses) in the consclidated
statement of comprehensive income,

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assels that have an indefinite useful ife, for example goodwdl, are not subject to
amorization and are tested annually Tor impaiment. Assels are reviewed for Impairment
whanever events or changes in crcumstances indicate thal the carrying amount may not
be recoverable, An impairment loss s recognisad for the amount by which the asset's
carrying amount exceeds fis recoverable amount. The recoverable amount (5 the higher
of an asset’s fair value less costs o sell and vaiue in use, For the purposes of assessing
impairment, asse’s are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash-genarating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill
that suffarad an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each
year end date.
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Summary of significant aceounting policies (Continued)
Financial assets and liabilities

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the fcllowing categorias: financial assets at
falr valua Ihrcugh profit or loss and avallable-for-sale, The classification depends on the
purpose for which the financia! assats were acquired. Management datermines the
classfication of its financial assats at inftial recognition,

{a) Finarcial assels and iabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial asset and fabiitles al faiy value through profit or loss are classified as
held for trading i it is acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of seling or
repurchasging in the near term cr if on initial recognition is part of a porticlio of
kientfigbla financial invesiments that are managed together and for which there
is evidence of a recent actual pattemn of shorl-lerm profit taking. Darvatives are
also calegonsed as held for tracéng, The Fund does not classify any derivatives
as hedges in a hecging relationship. Financlal assets and liabilties in this
calegory are classified as current asssts and current liabiliies respectively i
axpactad 1o be seftled within 12 months; otherwise, they are classified as non-
currant.

{b) Available-for-sale financial assets

Avallable-for-zale financial assels are non-derivatives that are elther designated
in this category o not classified in any of the olher categories. Thay ara included
in nom-currant assats unless the investment malures or maragement intends to
digpose of it within 12 months of the end of the repoting period,

Recognition and measurement

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade-date — the
date on which the Group commits 1o purchase or sell the assel. Investments are initially
recognized at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial assels not carried at falr
value through profit or loes. Financial assets camvied at fair valua through profit or loss
are inifially recognised at fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income. Financial assets are derecognisad
when the righis 1o recelve cash flows from the investments have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has tansterred substantially all risks and rewands of
cwmership. Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assels al fair value through
profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair value,

Gains or losses ansing trom changes in the falr value of the “Fnancial assets/{liabilitics)
al fair value through profit or Joss™ category are presentad in the consolidated statement
of comprehansive income within "other gains/{lasses)” in the perod in which they arise.
Dividend income from financial assets at fair value through profit or less Is recognised In
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as pan of other incoma whan the
Group's night to recelve paymants is established.
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
2 Summary of significant accounting pelicies (Centinued)
26  Financial assots and liabilities (Continued)
2.6.2 Recognition and measurement (Continued)
Avallable-for-sale financial assets are subsequently carred at fair value.

Changes In the fair value of manetary and non-moretary securities classified as
available-for-sale are recogrised in other comprehensive Income.

When securiies classified as available-for-sale are sald or impaired, the accumuiated
fair valus adjusiments recognised in equily are inciuded in the consolidated statement of
comprehansive income as "realised gains on available-for-sale financial assets”,

2.7  Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the nel amount reperted in the balance
sheat when there is 2 legally enforceable right 1o offset the recognised amounts and
there Is an intention to setie on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the Hability
simultanaausly.

2.8  Impairment of financial assals
{a)  Assels caried al ameorlized cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting perod whather there is
objective evidence that a financial assst or group of financial assets is impaired,
A financlal assel or a group of financial assets s impaired and Impairmeant losses
ere incurmed only if thers is objective evidence of Impairment az a result of one or
mara events that occurred after the initial racegnition of the asset (a "loss event”)
and that loss avent (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset or group of financial assels that can be reliably astimated.

The amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset's
camying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit fosses that have not been Incurred) discountad at the financial
assel's orginal effective interest rate. The assel's carrying amount of the assel is
reduced and the amount of the loss is recognized in the consolidated statement
of comprahensive income.

If, in a subsaquent period, tha amount of the impaiment loss decreases and the
decreasa can be related objectively to an avenl cceurring after the Impaiment
was recognized (such as an improvement in the debtor's credit rating), the
reversal of the previously recognized impairment loss is recognized in the
consolidated statement of comprehensiva income.
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.8 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(0} Assels classified as available-for-zale

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting pedod whether there is
ohjective evidencs that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is Impainad,
In the case of equity Invesimenls classified as available-for-sale, a sigrificant or
proonged decling in the fair value of the security below its cost & also evidence
that the assets are impaired. if any such evidence exists far available-for-sale
financlal assels, the cumulative lass - measured as the diference between the
acquisition cost and the cument fair value, iess any impairment loss on that
firancial asset previously racognized in profit or loss - s removed from equity and
recognized In the consolidated statement of comprehensive incame, Impairmant
losses recognized in the consclidaled statement of comprehensive income on
Bouily instruments are not reversed through the consolidated statement of
comprehensive ncome,

2.9 Trade and other receivables
Trade receivebles are amounts due from brokers, deposils and prepayments. If their
seffement is axpectsd in one year or lass, they are classified as current assets. If not,
they are presanted as non-current assets,
Trade and other receivables are recognised mnitially at fair value and subsequenty
measured at amortised cosl using the effective inlerest method, less provision for
impairmant.

2.10 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash eguivalents includes eash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, othar
short-tarm highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less, and
bank overdrafts. Bank ovardrafts, if any, are shewn in current liabilities in the statement
of financial position.

2.11 Share capital
Orcinary shares are classificd as equity.

incremental costs directly atiributabie to the issue of new shares or options are shown in
edquity as a daduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

2,12 Trade payables

Trade payable are classified as currant llablitles if payment is due within ona year or less.
If not, they are prasented a5 non-current liabilites.

Trade payables aré recognised initially at fair valus and subsequently measurcd at
amorlised cosl using the effective interest maethod,
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
213 Current and defarred income tax

The tax exgenss for the perlod comprises cument and defarred tax. Tax is recognised in
the consalidated statement of comprehensive income, except to the extent that it relates
to ftems recognised in other comprenensiva income or directly in equity. in this case the
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in eguity, respectively.

The current income tax cherge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet dale in the sountries whars the Company's
subsidiary operate and generate laxable income. Management periodically evaluates
puositions taken in lax retums with respect to situalions in which applicable tax regulation
is subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate en the basis of
amounts expecizd to be paid to the tax authorities,

Delerred income 1ax is recagnised, using the lisbillty method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assels and liabilitles and their carrying amounts in e
consoficated financial statemants. Howaver, the deferred incoma tax is not accounted for
i it arses from initial recognitton of an asset or Habllity in & transacticn other than a
business comtinaton that at the time of the transaction aflects neithar Aaccounting nor
faxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws] that
have been enacted or substantialiy enacted by the balance sheet date and are expacted
te apply when the refatad deferred Income tax asset is realised or the deferred income
tax lablity is setied.

Deferred income tax assels are racognised only to the extent that it is prabable that
future taxable profit will be available against which the temperary differences can be
utiised,

Daferred income tax is provided on lemporary differences arising on investments in
subsiciary, except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is
cantroliad by the Group and it is probable that the temporary diffsrance will not raversa In
the foreseeable future,

Deferred incoma tax assels and liabilities are offset whan thers is a legally enforceable
right lo offsat curent tax assals agalnsl current tax liabiliies and when the deferred
income taxes assets and Habilities relate to Income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on sither the taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is an
intention to seltle the balances on a net basis.
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
Revenue recagnition

Hevenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivabls for
pravision of asset management senvices,

The Group recognises revenue when tha amount of revenue can be reliably measured
and il is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the antity.

Interest income is recognised using the effactive interest method. When a loan and
receivable is impaired, the Group reduces the camrying amout to its recovarable amount,
belng the estimated futura cash flow discounted at the original sffactive interest rate of
the instrumant, and continues unwinding the discount as interest income. Interest income
on impaired kan and receivables are recognised using the aniginal effective Interest rate,

Divideand income is recognised when the right to receive payment i established.
Financial risk managament

The Group's activities expose il to a varety of financial risks: markat prica risk,
counterparly risk and liquidity risk, The Group's overall risk management programmea
facuses on the unpredictability of financiel markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the Groug's financial performance. The Group may use derivative
financial instrumerts to hedge certain risk expasuras.

Market price risk

Market price dsk is the risk thal the value of a financial instrument will fuctuate as a
result of changes in market prices, whether those changes are caused by faclora
speciiic to the individual instrumant or factors affecting all instruments in the market.

The Group trades in financial instruments, taking posilisns in axchange lraded
instruments to lake advantage of short term market movements in the futures markets.
The Group is expesed o market price risk on all of #s financlal instruments. The Group
manages risk by conducting screening and furdamental research during the investmant
seleclicn process,

At 31 Dacamber 2011, the Group's market risk was affected by three main componenis:
changes in actual market prices, interest rate and fereign currency movemants. Interast
rale and forelgn currency movements are covered In notes 3(b) and 3{e) balow
respactively. The Group's markel price risk is managed by sesking 1o moderate risk
through a careful selection of securities within specified limits.
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CS50P ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Financial risk management (Cantinued)

Market price risk {Continued)

The table below summarizes the Group's net markat price risk exposura.

Analysis of financial assets and liabilities by products:

2011 2010
HES HKS
Financial assats held for trading
- Listed equiliss — Hoeng Keng and China 63,533,764 144,577,305
- Unfizted embedded derivatives al fair value through
profit or loss - 40,267,150
- Unlisted investment funds 108,083 892 -

Total financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss 1V2e22,658 134 844,455

= - 1

Financial liabilities held for trading

- Listed aquities 38,253,505 53 976,897
- Futures - 77.247
Total financial liabilities at fair value through profit

or loss 38,253,525 53,814,144

Net gainsf{losses) on financial assets and
liakilities at fair value through profit or loss - held

far trading
- Realized 22,384 658 4,157,054
- Change in unrealised (21,123,0565) (9,645,689)
Total net gains/{losses) 1,261,803 (5,488,635)
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CS0P ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Financial risk management (Continued)

Market price risk (Continued)

The table below summarises the impact of increases/decreases of the benchmark index
ta which the Group is comparing with. The analysis is based on the assumption that the
index had increasedidecreased by the respeclive percentage and the Group's
investments moved according to the historical correlation with the incex. This analysis is
cependent on historical data and therefore reliss on the appropriateness of the data set
being used.

2011

Change in Impact on

market Met Assets

index % HKE

Hang Seng China Enterprises Index + 20% /- 5,088,872
2010

Changs in Impact on

market Met Assets

index % HKS

Hang Seng China Enterprises Index +-20% 4/~ 28,340,683

Changes in benchmark index % are revised annually depending on management's
current view of market velatility and other relevant tactors,

Actual movements of the reasonable possible shift may be greater or Iess than
anticipated dus to a number of factors, including unusually large market shocks resulting
from changes in the performance of economias and markets subsequent to the period
end in which the Group invests. As a resuit, the reasonable possible shift used for the
purpose of market price sk sensitivity analysis may not be a definitive indicator of future
variations in the risk vaniables,

The Group dees not manage with referance lo any market indices. The Group is also
not directly carrelated with any market indices. The market index used in the above
lable should be used solely Tor quidance purpese.

There was no exposure 1o individual Investments representing over 5% of the Graup's net
asset value at 31 December 2011 (2010: nil}.

- 24 -
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
NOTES TQ THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
3 Financial ik management (Continued)
(b)  Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk thal the value of a financial Instrument will fluctuate due to
changes in market interast rates,

The Group is exposed lo risks associated with the effects of fuctuations in the prevailing
levels of market Interest rates on its financia! position and cash flows,

At 31 December 2011, the Group's net interest rate risk exposure was HK$137,1532.480
(2010: HKS165,622,678). If interest rales had been 25 basis points higher ar lower with
all clher variables held constant, net assets attdbutabla Io owner would have heen
impacted by HK$342,831(2010: HK$414,057) higher or lower at 31 December 2011,

(]  Counterparty risk

Countarparty risk is the risk a counterparly to a financial Instrument will cause the Group
financial Inss by failing to discharge its cbligations. The Group seeks to minimize this risk
of loss by careful cheice of counterparties and by minimizing the reliance placed on
individual counterpartias,

The Group maintains a list of approved brokers selected 1o manage the risk that a broker
may fail and lsad 1o a loss on frada, All transactions in listed investments are settled on
a delivery versus payment basis using approved brokers. The risk of default s
considered minimal, as delivery of securities sold is only made when the Group's
custodian bank has recsived payment. For a purchase, payment is made once the
securities have been received by the Group's custodian bank. The trade will fail if eithar
party falls to meet their cbligation.

Bank balances are placed with reputable financial institutions.

The table belew summarizes the assels placed with the custodian and broker as at year

&nd data: ;
2011
Credit
HIKS Raling Source

Bank

Industrial and Commercial Bank of

China (Asia) Limited 30,678,718 A-2 Moody's
Custodian
Goldman Sachs 160,064,085 A- S&P
Total 190,742 B3

-
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Financial risk management (Continued)

Counterparty risk (Continued)

2010
Credit
HKS Rating Source
Bank
Industrial and Cemmercial Bank of
China {Asia) Limfted 165,622,678 A2 Meady's
Custodian
Goldman Sachs 162,712,090 A1 SaP
Total 328,334,768
L ———
Liquidity risk

The Group Is exposed to iquidity sk when il encounters difficulty in meeting ohligations
associated with financial liabilities. It manages tiquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash
and cash equivalents.

The table below analyses the Group’s and the Company's financial labilties. The
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances
dua within 12 months equal thair carrying balances, as the impact of discounting /s not
signifizant,

Less than Ovar
1 month  1-6 months & manths Total
HKS HKE HKS HES
Group
At 31 December 2011
Account payables 335,524 7 4E8,230 - 7,804,154
Amount due to brokers 4,043,574 - - 4,043,574
Total frads and other
payables 4,379,498 7,488,230 - 11,847,728
At 31 December 2010
Account payables 279,238 4,708,538 - 4,987.877
Amount due to brokers 15,031,727 - - 15,031,727

Tetal trade and other
payables 15,310,966 4,708 638 - 20,019,604

= T RS ]
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Financial risk management (Continued)

Liquidity risk {Continued)
Less than Owver
1 month  1-8 months & months Total
HKS HKS HIKE HES
Company
At 31 December 2011
Account payables - 7.AB8,230 - 7,468,230
Total trade and othar
payables - 7,468,230 - 7,468,230
At 31 December 2010
Account payables - 4,708,638 - 4,708,628
Total frade and other a
payables - 4,708,538 - 4,708,638

Currency risk

The functional currency of the Group is HK dollar. The Group is therefore exposed lo
currency tisk, as the value of the assets denominated In other currencies will fluctusate
due lo changes in exchange rates,

Tha nominal currency denomination of the Group's equity assets is determined by the
currancy of tha stock exchange on which the Invsstmeant trades and hence is only parly
4 guide lo the Group's currency exposure.

The Group's transactions, assats and liakbiliies are mainly denominated In United States
dallars (*US dollars”) and HK doilars. Hong Kong dollar is currently pegged to the US
dollar and as such the Group is not exposed to significant currency risk.

Fair value estimation

The Group adopted the amendmant to HKFRS 7, effective 1 January 2008, This reguires
the Group to classify fair value measurements using a fair vaiue hierarchy that reflects
the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value higrarchy
has the following levels:

. CQuoted prices [unadjusted) in aclive markets for identical assets or liabilities
{level 1}.
. Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the

asset or liabiity, either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived
from prices) (level 2),

. Inputs for the asset or liability that are not basad on observable market data (that
is, urobsarvable inputs) {level 2).

a7
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C30P ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Financial risk management {Continued)

Fair value estimation {Continued)

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement is
calegorised in its entirely is determinad on the basis of the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety. For this purpose, the significance
of an input is assessed against the fair value measuremant in its entirety. If a fair value
measurement uses observable inputs thal require significant adjustment based on
unobservable inpuls, that measurement is & level 3 measurement, Assessing the
significance of a particular input to the fair value measuremant in its entlrety requires
judgment, eansidering factors specific to the asset or liabiity,

The datermination of what constitutes “observable® requires significant judgment by the
Greup. Tha Group considers observable data to be that market data thal is readily
available, regularly distributed or updated, reliable and verifiabia, nat propristary, and
provided by indepentdent sources that are aclively involved in the relevant markat,

The following table anzlyses within the fair value hisrarchy the Group's financial assets
and [iabilities {by class) measured at fair value at year end date:

Lavel 1 Lavel 3 Leval 3 Tatal
Hi% HiKE HES HES
At 31 December 2011

Assats
Financial asssls al feir value
throwgh profit or less:
- lizled equities 63,533,764 - - 63,533,764
- unlisted Invasimant funds o = 102,086,892 109,088,892
Available-for-sale financial
assels:
= unfisled invesiment funds - - 28,367 280 26,267,280

Liabilities
Financial liabiities at fair value
through profil or logs:

= listed equitics [38,253,525) - = [3B.253525)
Met financial assels 25,280,230 - 135455172  160,736411

e ———
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Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
HKS HKS HIKS HKS
At 31 December 2010
Aszels
Financial assets af lair valua
through prafit or loes:
= listed equities 144 577,305 = - 144,577,305
- unlisted embedded dervative = - 40,267,150 40,257,150
Available-for-sale financial
aseais;
- unlisted invasimant funds - - 7. TE8 400 7,768,400
Liahilities
Financial Fabiiities al fair valee
threwgh profit or loss:
= iisted soultics {53, 736,800) £ - (53,736,890}
- futures (77,254) 2 - (77,254)
Met tinancial assets - 48,035,550

80,763,161

138,788,711

Invesiments which values are based on quoted market prices in active markats, and
therefore classified within level 1, include active listed equities and exchange traded
derivatives. The Group does not adjust the quoted price for these Instruments,

The following table presents the changes in lovel 3 Instruments for the year ended 31

Desembar 2071,
Embedded  Awvallable-for- Financial
derivative  sale financial asset at fair
at fair value assats value Total
through through
profit or profit and
loss loss
Opening balance 40,257,150 7,768,400 - 48,035,550
Purchases - 42,145,396 123,372,208 165517.604
Sales {44,475.127) {26,607 586) - {71,082,723)
Gains and
recognized in
consclidated statement of
comprehensive income 4207977 3,061,080 (14,283,316) (7.014,259)
Closing balance - 28,367,280 109,088,892 135,456,172
Total gains or losses for the
period included in
consolidated statement of
comprehensive  income
for assets held at the and
of the reporting period . {240,316) (14,283,316) (14,523,632)
-Pg.
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Finanelal risk management {Sontinued)

Falr value estimation {Continued)

The tollowing table presents the changes in level 3 instruments for the year ended 31

December 2010,
Embedded derivative at  Available-for-
fair value through profit  sale financial ;
B __orloss assets Taotal
Cpening balance - - -
Purchases 38,500,000 7,768,400 46,268,400
Gains and losses recognized
in conzolidgated statement
of comprehansive income 1,767,150 - 1LETED
Closing balanca 40,267,150 7,768,400 48,035,550
Total gains or losses for fhe
perioc included in
consolidated statement of
comprehensive income for
assels held at the end of
the reporting period 1,767,150 - 1,767,150

Taxation - Group and Company
Income tax expense

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2010: 16.5%] on the
estimated assessable profit for the year.

2011 2010

HKS HKS

Heong Kong profits tax 4,370,742 255,139

Ower provision in prior years (S, 588) -

Current tax 4,001,156 285,139
Deferred tax relating to the origination and reversal of .

temporary differances (24,715) -

Taxation charge 3,976,441 285,139

-a0-
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
4 Taxation - Group and Company {Continuad)
{a) Income tax expense (Continued)
The lax on the Group's and Company's profit before tax differs from the theoralical

amount that would arise using the tax rate of the homa country of the Group and
Company as follows:

2011 2010

HKS HKS

Prafit before income tax 10,618,792 18,306,118
Tax caloulated at local rate of 18.5% (2010: 16.5%) 1,752,101 2,690,509
Income not subject to tax {#55,700) (84,273)
Deamed profit from Investrment in a fund 2,630,771 .
Expenses not deductiole for tax purposes 218,945 3,152,510
Overprovision of tax in prior years (369,586) {5,463,607)
Taxalion charge 3876441 295139

[19)] Deferred tax

2011 2010

HKS HKS

Defarred tax assets 24,715 -

The movement of the Campany's deferred Fablitles! (assels) during the year is as

follows:
Accelerated
tax
depreciation
HKS
At 1 January 2010 =
Charged to the consolideted statament of comprehensive income -
At 31 December 2010 and 1 January 2011 =
Credited o the consalidated statemant of comprehensive income {24,715)
At 31 December 2011 (24,715)

f——

-31-
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Property, plant and equipment - Group and Company

Ooooooooooooooooooad

Giroup and Company
Leasehold
Furniture Difice improve-
and fixtures  equipment mants Total
Hik% HKS HiE HEKS
Yaar ended 31 December
2070

Opening net bock amount 83,823 432,388 326,778 842 088
Additizns - 03,252 572,571 875,823
Cepreciation (21,330) {203,861) (417,578) {642 789)
Claging nel book amount B2,493 831,779 481,771 1,076,043
At 31 December 2010 -
Cost 112,262 901,629 1,215,867 2,229 873
Accumulated depreciation (45,770} {363,850) {734,218} (1,153,835)
Met book amaount 62,493 531,778 481,771 1,076,043
Year ended 31 Decamber
2011
Opeaning net book amount 62,493 531,779 481,771 1,076,043
Additions 71,450 205,850 283,420 660,530
Depreciation (25,8693) (274,003) (369,418) (663,290)
Closing net book amount 108,084 463,426 495,773 1,067 283
At 31 December 2011
Cost 183,723 1,107,279 1,599,407 2,890,409
Accumulated depreciation (75,530) (B43.85%) (1,103,634) {1.823128)
Met beok amount 108,084 463,426 495,773 1,067,283
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Investmeant in subsidiaries - Company

2011 2mo
HEKS HK3
Unlisted fnvesiment in subsidiarias, at fair value 95,221,158 182,079 053
The follewing is a list of subsidiaries at 31 Decamber 2011:
Particulars
Piace of Frincipal activilies of iszued Irterest
Hama incorporation  and place of goeration  shares hatd held
CSOP Cayman Invests in the Graater 105,666 out of 120,656 B1%
Gireater [slands China Region to pursue  radeemable
China dbsolute retums and to. particlpating shares
Absolute achisve medinm o with par valua of
Raturm Fund long-term capital UE$0.001 per share
appreciation
DHF & CO., British Virgin -~ Dormant 1 imsued share with par  100%
LTD. Islands value of HKE1 per
(forrmerly shara
known as
“CS0OP Assat
Maragamant
1BV} Ltd)

Available-for-sale financial assets

On 1 Dacember 2010, the Company invested US$1,000,000 ar HKS7, 768,400 in EJF
Greater China Master Fund, Ltd. (the “Master Fund™) for 10,000 shares at US$100 each,
On 4 January 2011, the Company invested an additonal of US$2,000,000 or
HKS$15,537,800 in the Master Fund. On 1 August 2011, the Company has disposed of
all the investment in the Master Fund and a gain of HK$3,301,386 is recogrised in the
consolidated statement of comprabeansive income.

On the same date, the Company invested US$3,417,363 or HK$26,607.506 in EJF
Greater China Fund, Ltd. The Fund will seek to achieve its investment cbiective by
investing all or substantially all of its assets in the Master Fund, which has the same
invesiment chjective as the Fund. The fair value of the investment amounted to
HKS28,367,280 as at 31 December 2011,

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

On 24 May 2010, the Company (the "Subscriber) purchased a convertible band issued
by Huscoke Resources Holding Limiled (the ‘“Issuer’) for & consideration of
HK$38,500,000. The convertile bond is a senior unsubordinated and secured
converlinle bond in the aggregate prncipal amount of HK$38,500,000 with interest of 55
per annum fo be issued by the Issuer in favour of the Subscriber. The maturity date is 3
years after date of purchase, 24 May 2013, The fair valus of the convertible bond was
HK$40,257,150 as at 31 Dacember 2010. The convertible bond has been lully disposed
of on 7 September 2011 and a gain of HK$4,207,977 is recognized in the consolidated
statemant of comprehensive incomea.
-33-
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CS0P ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Financial asscts at fair value through prafit or loss (Continued)

During the year 2011, the Company invested through a series of subscription over Ghina
Southern Dragon Dynamiz Fund = China New Balance Oeporlunity Fund {"CNBO") and
China Southern Dragon Dynamic Fund — RMB High Yieid Bond Fund (*CNBE") {togather,
the “Sub-funds"} throughaut the year under the China Southern Dragon Dynamic Fund,

The lotal amaunt invesled inle the Sub-unds amounted 1o HEK$123,572,208, of which
HIK$31,164,208 was invested into CNBO while HKS92 208,000 was invested into CNBEB.
The fair value of the Sub-funds is HK$109,088,802 as at 31 Decomber 2011 and 2 loss
of HK$14,263,316 is recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive Income.

Trade and other receivables - Group

The camying amounts of lrade and other recaivables, which approximate to their fair
valuas, are as follows:

2011 =010

HES HKE
Armount due fram brokers 5,306 865 18,134,785
Deposits 1,440 429 1,289,794
Other accounts receivable 1,168,061 517,530
Accounts recoivable 764,503 -
Prepayments 293,278 583 426
Accrued interest income - 437 437

9,063,136 21,072,972

Cash and cash equivalents - Group and Company

Group Company
2011 210 2011 210
HKS HK$ HKS HKS
Cash at banks and in hand 121,814,514 165,622 878 30,021,871 34,102 504

121,814,514 165,622 678 30,021,871 34,102 504

- t—

Maximum exposure to credit
risk 121,814,514 185822 670 30,021,871 34,102,504

Share capital - Group and Company

The authorised number of ordinary shares is 200,000,000 shares (2610: 200,000,000
shares) with a par value of HK§1 per share (2010: HKS1 per share). All issued shares
are fully paid.

=34 -
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Other reserves - Group and Company

Group

Balance at 31 December 2009

Currency translation differences

Balance at 31 Dacember 2010

Cumency translation differences

Change in value of available-lor-sale financial assels

Balance at 31 December 2011

Company

Balance at 31 December 2009

Revaluation reserve - fair value gain in investment in subsidiarias
Balance at 31 December 2010

Revaluation raserve - lair value gain in investmen: in subsidiaries
Revaluation resarve - fair value ioss In available-for-sale financial

assels

Balance at 31 December 2011

Cash generated from eperations - Group

Reconcitiation of profit before tax to net cash wsed in aperating activities:

Profa belorg ingome lax
Adjustments far
- Deprodiation
- Finarce incormes
= Dhwiciend fracosg
- Finanee: costs
- Gumaney transkalion dFerence
= Realised gaing on disposal of corvensio bonds
- Fealised gaire on Sepocal of svallabie-lar-sals Srsndel nsseis
= Ghenga in fair vahee of 1ne nor-curtant inancial assats f fgir valua
thicugh profit and ioss
- Decreasa in frads and olher receimbles
= Decraana in cursent finarcial assare 41 fal- value lhreogh peotil or ks
- {ncreaseidecrensn i ameunt dus fiom immedate holging company
- Decreased('ncrnase) in accrued chames
= (Pecreasalincreass in trada ard cthar payables
- [Gavremsmpincraaes in curent fmancial | ebifiiaz at falr valss theough
profit of lnss

Cesh genaraled from operaling activithes

- 35 -
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HKS

43822
424,339

468,261
{528,806)
{240,318}
{200,861)

HKS

18,390,338
(11,044,391)

7,345,947
507,752

(240,316)

7,613,383

2010
HKE

18,306,114

&, 7ED
[1,%29,014)
{1,350,658]

13,752
7,426

(1,767,150}
B2,E72,255
PTO22.070
01,283
15289
5,082 93

ek B B

164,926,162
—————
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Commitmentis - Group and Company

Ooooooooooooooooooad

The Group leases office, slafi quarer and director's quarter under non-cancellable

operating lease agreements.

The future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases

are as follows:

2011
HKE
Mat later than one year 4,507,580
Later than ane year but not later than five years -

2010
HKS

4,664,500
4,234 880

4,507,590

Related party transactions - Group

The Group carried out the following transactions with related parties:

Mote 2011
HKE
Directors’ emaclument 6,787,600
Related party transactions during the year
- Advisory fee incame ] 44,823 937
Year-and balances arising from ralated party
transactions:
- Amaount due from immediate holding
company (B} 20,750,091
Advisory fee income

8,899,300

2010
HEE
7,461,022

50,127,761

13,001,703

The amount represents advisory fee income amounted to HKS44.823.937 (2010:
HK$50,127,761) received from China Southern Fund Managemert Co. Ltd, its ultimate
holding eompany, for the provision of the advisory service in relation to the Qualifisd

Domestic Institutional investor Q0.

Amount due from immediate holding company

These amounts dug fromAo relaled parties are unsecured, interest-free and havae no

fixed repayment terms.

=35 =
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Directors' emoluments

The remuneration of Directors for the year is set out below:

Ooooooooooooooooooad

2010
HES

5,508,230
1,203,000
748,732

2011
HKS

Company and its subsidiaries
Remuneration 4,768,000
Discretionary bonuses 1,000,000
Other benefits - quarter 1,029,600
8,797 600

Company

Ramuneration 3,076,000
Discretionary bonuses -
Other benefits - quarter 573,800

7461022

2,568,657

748,732

3,649,500

Approval of consolidated financial statements

3,315,399

The consolidated financial statements were approved by the Board of Direclors on 29

February 2012,

-37-
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CSOP

1231

20009

20009

2010

2010

626, 934

989 9,

111, 5%3%0, 854,392842,989 9,626, 934

49,

2

4, 86
, 631

, 66
019

7 2360 6,

599, 879%59

828,
BHAZ 677,

274,85831,616,322,687,35685, 096, 469

344,

723,403

530,394694,

386, 25492, 470,338,

393,

000, 2

00,

P

, 922
28,0

43
, 2

1
[053:¢

890,3%89,691,27222, 474,326

277,8%3@11,

316,

1464 4,557,524

53,814,

839, 6R4&42,249, 077

580, 4298,

6 1898 0,

108,

77,

723,403

530,34694,

386, 25492, 470,338,

393,

35
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1231
2010 2010 20009 20009

1,076,04312,288,411842,989 9,626, 934
182,079,P60679, 342,899, 406, B8/7/B72,260, 814
7,768,408, 715, 128 - -

40,267, 15469, 850, 853 - -

231,190,835640, 197,292,249, Bp581, 887,748

13,001, 7348, 479, 448,503, 061664, 205, 014
328,042 3,746, 2406, 702, 7556, 545, 462
2,381,8842£7,201,1169, 917, 117/08, 453, 419

- - 59,588, ,
34,102, 5489, 450, 5964, 903, 53140,

49,814, 13%%8,877,396084,614,18879,900, 811

281,004,38%209, 074,36, 864,34¥Y61, 788, 559

200, 000,P»0P84,000,P00, 000,P»0P84, 000, 000
7,345,94W83,890, 7158, 390, 380,017,660
65,675,33%0,012, 3B, 881, 613098, 348, 009

273,021,28017,903,P2833,271,25892, 365,669

4,708,638%3,772,6460,679, 204L1, 956,510
2,354,66®6,890,21%Y2,308, 08M140,558, 285
920,211 10,508,810604,912 6,908, 0095

7,983,509®1,171,6733,592, 1B, 422, 890

281,004,38209,074,p96, 864,34%61, 788,559
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2010 2010 20009 20009
1231 ) 1231 ) 1231 ) 1231 )
50,656, 14658, 493, 1720, 977, 43M2, 342,251
1,457,1206,640, 31028, 020, 4800, 994, 064
3(a) (5,488, 63X5%)2, 680, 212)644,579 7,361,092
(32,247, (B%)8, 266, (BM), 555, (BHA)8, 939, 687)
14,377,10%4, 186, 5048, 087,3801, 757,720
1,942,7662, 186,388 44,010 502, 594
(13,752) (157,048) (69) (788)
16,306, 111686, 215, 848, 131, 3MBM2, 259, 526
4 (295,139)3,370, 47)2, 308, 0(814)0, 558, 285)

16, 010,971B2, 845, 3%K,823,22Z661, 701, 241

19,460,622, 240, 818, 178, 8&x64, 402, 878
(3,449, 69438)9,395,494),644,348B7, 298, 363

16, 010,971B2, 845, 3%K,823,22Z7661, 701, 241

(7,496) (85,604) 13,646 155, 837

(7,496) (85,604) 13,646 155, 837

16,003, 48182, 759, 7%%, 836, 8751,857, 078

19,885, 0®R7,086,8®B,222,8>lFK4, 904, 467
(3,881,52A84)4,327,0507), 614, 06486, 952,611

16,003, 48182, 759, 7%%, 836, 8751,857, 078

35
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CSOP
/ /
2009 1
200, 0002,0094, 000, 000- - (4,950 ,(8660,)538,1802%51,)0492 124D7, 461, 179- - 195,0492,12D7, 461, 179
- - - - 58,178,686 402,587,878, %6, 402, 87644, 38470, 298, 8563823, 754, 701, 241
- - 43,922 501,589 - - 43,922 501,58930,276)345,752)13,646 155,837
- - 43,922 501,589 - - 43,922 501,589%30,276)345, 752)13,646 155, 837
- - 43,922 501, 589, 178,68686 402,587,822, $G8&, 904, 46614, 0864 952, 6541836, §54, 857, 078
- - - - - - - - 38,805,424630, 156 ,308698 05, 26®, 156, 069
- - - - - - - - 38,805,424630, 156 ,3086,98 05, 26®, 156, 069
2009231
200,0002,0094, 000, 04080, 922 501, 589, 228 ,600276, 86425372712 98182, 3654664619 ,58304 10828806913 2422, 474, 326
11 35
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CSOP
2010 1
200, 0002,0094, 000, 04080, 922 501, 589, 228 ,600276, 86425372712 98182, 3 654,66 461 9,504 10828806913 2422, 474, 326
- - - - 19,460,262720, 240 ,189514 60, ®2®, 240( 85449 ,(6393)395, 264010, 4B2, 845, 357
- - 424,3389,845,952 - - 424,3394,845,96231,885)931,556),496) (85,604)
- - 424,339,845, 952 - - 424,3394,845,96231,885)931,5567,496) (85, 604)
- - 424,338,845, 91592 460 ,262720, 240 ,1895 1885, R@F , 086( 80881 ,(54248)327, D60P03, 482, 759, 753
. . . . - - - - 582,876,656, 47882, 8796, 656, 478
. . - . - - - - 582,876,656, 47B82, 8796, 656, 478
2010231
200,0002,0094, 000, 068, 265, 347, 5/421, 688 ,863906 10428881563 9579, 45243441920 ,460725 43831682773,68R1, 890, 557
11 35
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2010 2010 20009 20009
1231 ) 12 31 y1231 ) 1231 )

13 104, 0809,19,4188 8, 7
(13,752) (15
(10,248,660,

o~
w -

[cc e Ne]
g~ N
@ =

93,827,63671,511(803032, 6868, 71

(875,828)10,001, 899108, 614)1, 240
1,491,5717,033,809 48,440 553,
42,336,2483, 479 ,(516751, 59 9(,13,7955)9 , 6
(7,768, 408B,715,128) - -
35,183,56681, 796,(314771, 65 9(,15,4996)0 , 3
1,350,8695,426,924644,579 7,361

582,879 6,656, 4788, 805,2683, 15
1,933,7482,083, 40329, 449, 8890, 51

6

5

7

130, 944,19,54295, 39 1(,135592, 2 4 2(,13,5851)8 , 54

4,863)

2,050)

7,694)

34,677, 7366, 019, 613913, 920,20,82114, 567, 325

165,622,1678891, 410, 983677, 73866, 019,631

165,622,16,78891, 410,983677, 73866, 019,631

165,622,1678891, 410, 983677, 7386, 019,631

183/265



EDINETOOOO
OO00D0O00o0O00D0bDO000DO0Odnoo(E27318)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

CSOP
CSOP
Suite 2802, Two Exche

Connaught Pl ace, Central, Hong Kong

2012 238

HKFRS
(a)
2010 1

27 2010 1
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(b)2010Q 1

i 9 20091 39

2013 1

i 2004a1 24
200 3 2 4
2 4 2011 1

acquisition method
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2010 2009
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CSOP
2009
%

29,966,005 10.00
43,612,039 14.55
48,647,000 16. 23
15,860, 497 5. 27
14,060,002 4.69
7,794,002 2.60
5,469, 341 1.82
1,784,094 0.60
4,406, 395 1. 47
171,599,37557.23

/

/
2010
%
H +/ - 20% +/ - 28,340,
2009

%
H +/ - 20% +/ - 16, 054,

196/265



EDINETOOOO
OO00D0O00o0O00D0bDO000DO0Odnoo(E27318)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

CSOP
3
(a)
1231 5%
% %
2010 2009
Fushan Energy - 8. 43
Kai sun Energy - 6. 97
CNNC'Il nt - 5.39
(b)
2010231 165,622, 678200934, 677, 72¢
1
25
2010231
414,057 20086, 6914
(c)
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197/265



EDINETOOOO
OO00D0O00o0O00D0bDO000DO0Odnoo(E27318)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

CSOP
3
(c)
1231
2010
165,622,678 A-2
162,712,090 A-1 S&P
328,334,768
2009
34,677,726 A-2 S&P
GF
60,757, 808 (a) S&P
1,706,376 (a) S&P
5 (a) S&P
5,991, 837 (a) S&P
32,362,141 A S&P
135, 495, 893
(a)
(d)

12
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- (53,736,890)
(77, 254)

2010231
1 3
144,577,305 - 144,577,305
- 40,267, 850267, 150
] 7,768,400768, 400
53,736, 890)
(77, 254) -
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3
(f)
2009231
1 2 3
171,599,375 - - 171,599, 375
171,599,375 - - 171,599, 375
1
2
2
3
3
2010231 3
3 38,500, 0007, 768, 4@6, 268, 400

1,767,150 - 1,767,150
40,267, 1507, 768, 488, 035, 550

1,767,150 - 1,767,150
20009 1231 3
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5 % 20009

2010 20009

295,13912,308, 081

295,13912, 308,081

2010 2009

16,306, 1%, 984,549

2009

2,690,5092,372, 451
(84,273) (135, 435)
3,152,510 71,065

(5,463, 607) -

295,13912,308, 081
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2010 20009
182,079, 063,406, 376
2010231
CSOP 0.1 81 %
261,332
211, 332
CSOP 1 100 %
(BVI) 1
201021 1100 1 100 7,768,400 EJF
EJF
2018 24
38,500,000
38,500,000 8
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21, 072,912,907, 790

2010 2009
17,724,412, 279, 253
3,348,560 628, 537
21,072,912, 907, 790

2010 20009 2010 20009

165,622 ,3%4,8677, 326102, 984903, 534
165, 622,3%4,8677, 326102, 34903

165, 622,3%4,8677, 326102, 34903, 534

200, 000,2000000200, 000, 000 1
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14 -
2.5 3
2010 20009
1 4,664,508, 494, 988
1 5 4,234,890,298, 996
8,899,39@, 793,984
15 -
2010 20009
7,461,0227,464, 176
(a) 13,001, 7083, 503, 066
(a)
16 -
2010 1231
2010 20009
5,509,29@, 800,000
1,203,00@,000, 000
) 748,732 664,176
7,461,022, 464,176
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The directors submit their report together with the audited financial statements for the year
ended 31 Decembar 2010.

Principal activity

The Company, which i2 licensed by the Hong Kong Securities and Futures Commission to camy
out Type 4 {advising on securities) and Type 9 (asset management} regulated activities as set
out in Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Securities and Futures Ordinance, acls as the manager for
its own managed funds. The activity of the subsidiary is sel out in note 6 fo the financial
statements.

Results and appropriations

The results of the Group for the year are sef oui in the consolidated statement of comprebansive
income on page 7.

Tha dircctors do not recommend the payment of any dividend.
Property, plant and equipment

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group are set out in note 5 to
the financial statements.

Share capital
Details of share capital of the Company are set out in note 11 1o the financial statements.
Reserves

The movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are et out in the consclidated
statement of changes in equity on page B.

Directors
The directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

CING Chen

FHANG Gacbo

CHANG Huifeng {resigned on & Mar 2010}

GAO Liangyu

QI Changlkui

DESCOURTIEUX Banolt

WEM Liang (appointed on & Mar 2010 and resigned en 31 July 2010}
QiU Guoly {appointed on & Mar 2010}

BAQ Wen Ge {appointed on 37 Jul 2010)

There being no pravision in the Company's Articies of Association for retirement by rotation, alf
directors continue in office.
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Directors’ interests in contracts

Mo contracts of significance in relation to the Group's business of which the Company, any of its
- fellow subsidiary or ils parent company was a party and in which a director of the Company had

a material interes!, whether directly or indiractly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time

during the year.

Directors' interests or shart positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company

Al no time during the year was the Company, its fellow subsidiary or ils parent company a party
to any arangements to enable the directors of the Company (including their spouses and
children under 18 years of ages) to hold any interests or sherl posifions in the shares or
underlying sharas in, or dabantures of, the Company

Management contracts

Mo contracts concerning the managemsant and administration of the whole or any substantial
parl of the business of the Company were antered into or existed during the year.

Auditors

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being
efigible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

Director

Hgng Kang' EE FEE EH“
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CSO0FP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

As at 31 December
MNcte 2010 2008
HKS HKE
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Properly, plant and aquipment 5 1,076,043 5842 988
Availabla-for-sala financial assst 7 7,765,400 =
Financial assets at fair vatue through profit or loss & 40,267,150 -
49,111,593 842 985
Current assets
Amount due from immediate holding company i5 13,001,703 13,503,066
Trade and cther receivables a9 21,072,872 102,207,790
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 144 577 305 171,596,375
Cash and cash equivalants 10 165,622,678 34,677,728
344,274 668 322 687 957
Total assets 393,386,251 323,530,948
EQUITY
Equity attributable to owners of the parent
Share capital 11 200,000,000  200.000,000
Cther reservas 12 465,261 43922
Retained eamings 72 668,695 53,228,026
273,156,957 253,271,948
Non-controlling interests 43,120,675 46,419 324
Total eguity ME277.632 298,681,272
LIABILITIES
Currant lHabilities
Trade and other payables 20,019,604 10,826,681
Current income tax liabilities 2,354 660 12,308,081
Accrued chamges 920,211 G04,812
Financial liabilities at fair valuz through profit or loss 53,814,144 -
Total liabilities 77,108,819 23,630,674
Total equity and liabilities 393386,251 323,530,846
f ) ;ﬂ‘
~ f o
L2

or ' Director

The notes on pages 11 to 35 are an ntegral part of these financial statermants.

-5
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED

BALAMCE SHEET
Ag at 31 Decembar
Maots 2010 2009
HKE HKS
ASBETS
Non-current assets
Froperty, planl and eguipment 5 1,076,043 842,589
Investment in a subsidiary & 182,075,083 111,406,376
Available-for-sale financial asset 7 7,768,400 -
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 8 40,267,150 -

231,190,656 112,249,365

Current assects
Amaunt due fram immediaie holding company 13,001,703 13,503,066
Amount due from subsidiary 328 042 6,702,755
Trade and other recaivables 2,381,884 89,817,112
Financial assets at fair value through profit or [oss - 59,588,315
Cash and cash equivalents 10 34,102,504 14,803 534
48 814,133 164 614,782
Total assets 281,004,788 275,884 147
EQGUITY
Equity attributable to owners of the parent
Share capital 11 200,000,000 200,000,000
Other reserves 12 7,345 947 18,390,338
Retained earnings B65,675.333 34,881,612
273,021,280 253,271,950
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Trade and ather payables 4,706,638 10,675,204
Gurrent income tax liabiiities 2,354 860 12,308,084
Accrued charges 920,211 604,912
Total liabilitics 7,883,509 23,592 197
Total equity and liabilities 281,004 78S 276 664 147

The notes on pages 11 to 35 are an integral part of these financial statements,

-5-
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Revanue

Other income

Other {losses)/ gains
Administrative expanses

Cperating profit
Finance income
Finance costs

Profit before income tax
Income tax expanse

Profit for the year
Profit attributable to:

Equity holders of the company
MNon-centrolling interest

Other comprehensive income:
Currency translation diffierences

Other comprehensive income for the year,
net of tax

Total comprehensive income for the year
Attributable to:
Equity hakders of the company
Mon-controlling interast

Total comprehensive income for the year

The notes on pages 11 to 35 are an integral part of these financial statemenis.

Mote

3(a)
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Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2010 2009
HES HES
50,656,145 28977 430
1,457,120 78,020 4596
(5.488,635) G4 575
(32.247 528) {30,555,139)
14,377 102 78,087 366
1,842 766 44 010
(13,752) (55)
18,306,118 78,131,307
(295 135} (12,308,081}
16,010,977 65,823,225
19,460,670 58,178,885
(3,445,693) 7,644 340
16,010,977 65 823226
(7, 455) 13,646
(7. 4596) 13,646
168,003,481 65,836,872
19 885 009 58 222,808
(3,881,528) 7,614,064
16,003,481 65,835,872



CS0P ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Balance at 1 January 2008
Comprehensive income
Profit
Other comprehensive income
Currency transiation differences
Total othier comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income

Transactions with owners
Issue of shares

Total transactions with owners

EBalance at 31 Decoember 2009
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[Accumulatad

Insses) I

Share Other Retained contre

Mote capital reseres earnings Total inite
HKS HKE HKS HKS
200,000,000 - (4,950,860) 195,049, 140

- - 58 178,885 58,178 286 7,644

- 43,922 - 43,922 {30

- 43 922 - 43 922 {30

43,922 58,178,685 0B 222 808 7614

- - - . 38,805

- - - - 38,805

200,000, 000 43,922 53 228,026 253271 948 46,419

The notes on pages 11 to 35 are an integral part of these financial statements
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONTINUED)

Balance at 1 January 2010
Comprehensive income
Profit! (loas)
Other comprehensive income
Currency translation differences
Total other comprehensive income
Tatal comprehensive iIncome

Transactions with owners
Issue of shares

Total transactions with owners

Balance at 31 December 2010

Nota
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Share Other Retained conlre
capital rasarves ocamings Total inte
HK$ HKE HKS HKS

200,000,000 43922 - 53228026 283,271,048 48,4148
- - 19,460,670 19,460,670 (3,449

£ 424 338 424 339 (431

- 424,339 - 424,339 {431'

- __ T 424 339 18,480,670 15,885,009 {3,881
. - » . 582

- - - . 582
200,000,000 468,261 V2,688,886 273,156,857 43,120

The notes on pages 11 o 35 are an imegral part of these financial statemeants.
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
Note 2010 2009
HES HKS
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash used in cperations 13 104,089,245 (27,032, 576)
Interest paid (13,752) {83
Income tax paid (10,248, 560) -
Met cash generated from/ (used in) oparating
activilias 93,827,635 {27,032,545)
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment {875,823) {108,614}
Imterast recaivad 1,491,577 48 440
Proceeds from sales! (purchase) of financial
assels at fair value through profit or loss 42 336,214 (171,508,375)
Acquisilion of available-for-gale financial asset (7,768,400) :
Met cash gencrated from/ {used in) investing
activities 35,183,568 {171,659,549)
Cash flows from financing activities
Dividend received 1,350,869 644 574
Proceeds from Esue of shares 582879 38,805,260
Met cash generatad from financing activitics 1,833,748 30,449,839
Increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents 130,944 852 {158,242 355)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 34 B7T 726 183,920,081
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 165,622 G786 34,677,728
Analysis of the balances of cash and cash
equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents 165,822 678 34677726
166,622,678 34,877,726

The notes on pages 11 to 35 are an integral part of these financial siatemants.

-10-

218/265

Pre= = =




2.1

EDINETOOOO

OO00D0O00o0O00D0bDO000DO0Odnoo(E27318)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

CS0OP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
General iInformation

CS0OP Asset Management Limited ('the Company') provides asset managament sorvices
under the Securities and Futures Ordinancs.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in Heng Kong. The address of
its registered office is Suite 2802, Two Exchange Square, 8 Connaught Placa, Central,
Hong Kang.

China Southam Fund Management Co. Lid, a company incorporated in the People’s
Republic of China, is the immediate and ultimate holding company.

These consolidated financial staterments are presented in HEK doflars, unless otherwize
glated. These consclidated financial statements have been approved for issue by the
Board of Directors on 287 February 2011,

Summary of significant accounting policles

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements are set out below. These pohicies have been consistently applied fo
all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordanca
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRS™). The consaolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the histerical cost canvention, as modified by the
revaluation of avallablefor-sale financial assets, and financial asseis (including
darivative instruments) at fair value through profit or loss.

The preparation of financial statemants in conformity with HKFRS requires the use of
certain crtical accounting estimates. it also reguires management to exercise ils
judgement in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies.

(a) New and amended standards adoptad by the Group

The Group has adopted the following new and amended HKFRSs as of 1
January 20110:

HKAS 27 (revised), 'Consalidated and separate financial statements’, (effective
from 1 July 2009). The revised standard requires the effects of all ransactions
with non-confrolling interest to be recorded in equity if there is no change in

control and these transactions will no longer result in goodwill or gains and losses.

The standard also specifies the accounting when control is lost, Any remaining
interest in the entity is re-measured to fair value, and a gain or loss is recognised
in profit or loss.

-{1 =
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation {Continued)

(B}

Mew standards, amendments and interpretations have been issusd but are nol
sffactive for the financial y2ar beginning 1 January 2010 and have not been early
adopted.

= HKFRS 8, 'Financial instruments’, issued in November 2002, This standard is
the firel step in the procass to replace HKAS 39, 'Financial instruments:
recognition and measurement. HKFRS 2 introduces new requirements for
classifying and measuring financial assets and is likely to affect the Group's
accounting for its financia! assets. The standasd is not applicable unil 1
January 2013 but is available for early adoption.

= Reviged HKAS 24 (revised), 'Relatec party disclosures’, issued in November
2003, It supersedes HKAS 24, ‘Related parly disclosures’, issued in 2003,
HKAS 24 (revised) i3 mandatory for pariods beginning on or after 1 January
2011. Earlier application, in whole or in part, is permitted.

2.2 Consolidation

(a}

Subsidiary

Subsidiary is an entty over which the Group has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies generally accompanying a shareholding of more
than one half of the voting rights. The existence and effect of polential voling
rights that are cumently exercisable of convertible are considered when
assessing whather the Group controls another entity. Subsidiary is fully
consolidated from the date on which confral is transferred o the Group. They are
de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.

The Group uses the acquisition method of accounting to account for business
combinations. The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is
the fair values of the assets transfered, the liabilities incurred and the equity
interests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred includes the fair
value of any asset or liabiity resuling from a contingent consideration
arrangemant. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred. |dentifiable
assels acquired and liabidities and contingent Eabililies assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisilion date. On
an acqguisition-by-acouisition basis, Ihe Group recognises any non-controfling
interest in the acguires efner at fair value or at the non-controlling interest's
proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets,

Investment in subsidiary s accounted for at cost less impairmert. Cost s
adjusled to reflact changes in consideration arising from contingent consideration
amendmeants. Cost also includes direct attribulable cosls of investmenl. The
result of subsidiary is accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend and
recenabe.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gaing on ftransactions
aotween Group companies are eliminated. Unrealised lpsses are also eliminated.

-
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

Forcign currency translation

(a)

b}

Functional and prasentalion currancy

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the Group's entities are
measured using the currency of the primary economic ervironment in which the
enfity aperates {‘the functioral currency’). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in HK dollars (HK$), which is the Company's furctional and the
Group's presentation curmency.

Transactions and balances

Forelgn currency transactions are iransialed into the functional currency using
the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation where
ilemz are re-measured. Forgign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
setilement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange
rates of monetary assets and [abiliies denominated in foreign cumencies are
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, except when
deferred in equily as qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying ret investment
hadges.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings and cash and cash
equivalerts are presented in the consolidated statement of comprahansive
income within finance income or cost’. All other foreign exchange gains and
losses are presenied in the censolidated stalement of comprehensive income
within ‘other (losses)/ gains’,

Changes in the fair value of monetary secunities denominated in foreign curmency
classified as available-for-sale are analysed befween franslation differences
resulting from changes in the amortised cost of the security and other changes in
the carrying amount of the security, Translation differences related to changes in
amortised cost are recognisad in profit or loss, and other changss in camrying
amount ara recognised in other comprenhensive incomea,

Translation differences on non-monetary financlal assets and liakilities such as
aguities held af fair value through profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss as
part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation differences on non-monetary
financial assets such as equities classified as available-for-zale are Includad in
ather compreh2nsive incoms,

-13-
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CS50P ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c) Subsidiary

The rasults and financial position of the subsidiary (none of which has the
currency of a hyper-inflationary economy) thal have a functional currency
differant from the preseniation currency are franslated info the presentation
currancy as follows:

i assets and liabilities presented are ranslated at lhe closing rate at the
date of thal balance sheef;

{if) income and expanses are fransiated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effact of
the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are transiated at the rate on the dates of the transactions); and

(i) all resulting exchange diffarances are recegnised in other comprehensiva
noome,

On consclidation, exchange differences ansing from lhe translation of the net
investment in foreign cperations are laken Lo other comprahensive incoms. When
a foreign operation is partially disposed of or sold, exchange differences that
ware recorded in equity are recognised in the consolidated slatement of
comprehensive income as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is staled al hislorical cost less depreciation. Historical
cost includes expendiiure thal is directly atiributabla to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are inciuded in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a
separate asse!, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow 1o the Graup and the cost of the item can be measured
rehakly. The carmying amount of the replaced parl is derecognised. All other repairs and
mainlenance are charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
during the financial penlod in which they are incurred.

Depreciation on assels s calculated using the straight-ine method to allocate their cost
or revalued amounts to their residual vaiues over their astimated vseful lves, as follows:

Leasehold improvemnent over lease term
Office equipment & years
Furniture and fixtures S years

The assels’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
tha end of each reporting period. An asset's camy'ng amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount iz greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the
carrying amount and are recognised within ofher gains/ (losses) in the consclidated
statemant of comprehensive income.

.

222/265



2.5

2.6

EDINETOOOO

OO00D0O00o0O00D0bDO000DO0Odnoo(E27318)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
Impairment of investments in subsidiary and non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example goodwiil, are notl subjeci to
amariization and are tested annually for impairment, Assets are reviewed for impairment
whanever avents or changes in circumstancas indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amcunt by which the asset's
carrying amount excesds its recoverable amount. The recoverable ameunt is the higher
of an assat's fair value less costs to sall and value in use. For the purposes of assassing
impaiment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separalely
identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assats other than goadwill
that suffered an impairment are reviewad for possible reversal of the impairment at each
reporting date.

Financial assets

2.6.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets al fair value through profit or lees and available-
for-zale. The classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets wera

acquired. Managemsnt determines the classification of its financial assets at initial
racognition.

" (a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assaefs at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets heid for
trading. A financial asset is classified in this category if acquired principally for the
purpose of seling in the short-lerm. Derivatives are also categerised as held for
trading unless they are designaled as hedges. Assels in this category are
classified as cument assefs. Assets in this category are classified as current
asszels if expected to be seitled within 12 months; ctherwise, they are classified
as non-current

(b} Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either desigrated
in this category or not classified in any of the olher calegoriss. They ara included

in nen-current assets unless the invesiment matures or management intéends to
dispose of it within 12 months of the end of the reporting pariod.

-15-
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

2.6.2 Recognition and measurement

Regutar way purchases and sales of financial assels are recognized on the frade-
date = tha date on which tha group commits fo purchazse or sell the asset
Investments are initially recognised at fair valus plus transaction costs for al
financial assets nol carried at fair value through profit or loss, Financial assels
carried at fair value through profit or [ogs are initially recognised at fair value, and
transaction costs are expensed in the consolidated stalement of comprehensive
income, Financial assets are derecognisad whan the rights to receive cash flows
from the investments have expired or have been transferred and the group has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale
financial assets and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
subsequently carried at falr value. Loans and recasivables are subsequently
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest methad.

Gains or losses arising from changes In the fair value of the financial assets at
fair value through proft or loss' category are presentsd in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income within ‘other {losses) gaing = net' in the
penod in which they anse. Dividend income from financial assets at fair value
through proft or loss iz recognised in the consclidated statemant of
comprehensive income as parl of other income when the group's right to receive
payments is established,

Available-for-sale financial assets are subsequently carmed at fair value,

Changes in the fair value of meonetary securifies denominated m a foreign
currency and classified as available-for-sale are analysed bebween franslation
differences resulting from changes in amortised cost of the security and other
changes in the carrying amount of the securily. The translation diferences on
monetary securities are recognised in profit or loss; ranslation differences on
nor-monetary securfies are recognised In other comprehensive income,
Changes in the fair value of monstary and non-monetary securities classified as
available-for-sale are recognised in other comprehensive income,

When securifies classified as aveilable-for-sale are sold or impaired, the
accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in equily are insluded in the
- consolidated staterment of comprehensive income as ‘gains and losses from
invesiment securities’,

Offsetting financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilties are offsel and the net amount reporied in the balance
sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and

there iz an intention 10 settle on a net basis, or realise the assat and setfle the Rability
simultaneously. ’
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of significant accounting policies {(Continued)
Impalirment of financial assets

(@) Assets carmed at amortized cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is
objective evidence that a fnancial asset or group of financial assets is impaired.
A financial asset or a group of financial assels iz impaired and impairment losses
arz incurred only if thare is objective evidence of impalrment as a resull of one or
more events thal occurred after the initial recognition of the assat {a Yloss event')
and that losz evert {or evenis) has an impact on the estimated fulure cash flows
of tha financial asset or group of financial agsets that can be reliably estimatec.

The amount of the lass is measured as the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
fulure credit lossas that have nol been incurred) discounted at the financial
aszet's original effactive interast rale. The assst's carying amount of the asset is
reduced and the amourt of the lass is recognized in the consolidated siaternant
of comarehensive income,

If, in & subsequent perod, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the
decreass can be related objectively to an event occcurring after the impairment
was recognized (such as an improvement in the debtor's credit rating), the
reversal of the previously recognized impaimment lass is recognized in the
consolidated stalement of comprehansive income,

(b} Assels classihied as available-for-sale

The Group assesses at the end of each reporling period whether there is
chiective avidencs that a financial asset or a group of finansial assets is mpaired.
In the case of equity investments classified as available-for-gale, a significant or
profonged decline in the fair value of the security balow its cost s also evidence
that tha assels are impaired, If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale
financial assets, the cumulalive loss = measured as the difference botwean the
acguisition cost and the currerd fair valus, less any impairment loss on that
financial asset previsusly recognized in profit or loss — is remeved from equity
and recognized in the separate consolidated statemant of comprehensive
income. Impairmen! losses recognized in the separate consalidated statement of
comprehensive income on equily instruments are not reversed through the
saparate consolidated statement of comprehansive incoma,

Trade and other recelvablas

Trade recaivables are amounts due from brokers, depesits and prepayments. If their
seltlement is expected in on2 year or less, they are classified as curent assets. If not,
they are presented as non-current assets,

Trade and other receivables are recognised inftially af fair value and subsequently

measured al amortised cost using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment.

b
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
2 Summary of significant accounting policies {Continued)
210 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other
short-term highly louid investments with original maturities of three meonths or less, and
bank cverdrafts,

2.11 Share capital
Crdinary shares are classified as eguity.

incremental costs directly atiributable to the issus of new shares or options are shown in
equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

212 Trade payables

Accounts payable are classifiad as current liabilties if payment is due within one year or
less. If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and subseguently measured at
amortised cost using the effactive interast method,

2.13  Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises curment and deferred tax. Tax iz recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, except to the axtant that it relatas
to iterns recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, In this case the
tax is atso recognisad in other comprehensive income or diragily in aquily, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the fax laws snacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries where the Company's
subsidiary operate and generate faxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax retums with respact to situations in which applicable tax regulation
Is subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of
ameounts expected to be paid to the tax autharities.

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liabiity method, on temporary differences
arising betwaen the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements, Howewsr, the defarred income tax iz not accountad for
if it arses from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a
business combination that at the time of the Iransaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss, Deferred income tax Is determined using tax rates (and laws) that
hava bean enacted or substantially enactad by the balanca sheel date and are expected
to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the defarred income
tax Hability is setiled.

Deaferrad income tax assets ara recognisad only to the extent thal # is probable that
future taxable profit will be availacle against which the temporary differsnces can be
utilised.

=18 -
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
2 Summary of significant accounting policies [Continued)
213 Current and deferred Income tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax k& provided on temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiary, except whare the timing of the reversal of the temporary differance is
controliad by the Group and it is grobable that the temporary difference will not reverse in
the fareseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabililies are offset when there s a legally enforceabls
right to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred
income taxes assets and llabilities relate to income tawes levied by the same taxation
authority on aither the taxable entity or different taxable entities whera thare is an
intention to setile the balances on a net basis,

2.14 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideraticn received or receivable for
provision of assel management services,

Thea Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured
and it is probable that future economic banefits will flow to the entity.

interest income is recognisad using the effective interest mathod. When a loan and
receivable is impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable amount,
being the estimated fulure cash flow discounted at the original effective interest rate of
the instrument, and cortinuas unainding the discount as interest incomea. Interest income
on impaired loan and receivables are recognised using the original effective interest rate.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.
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C30OP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 Financial risk management

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including
currency rigk, fair value interest rale risk, cash flow interes! rate risk and prica risk), cradit
risk and liquidity risk. The Grouvp's overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpradictabilify of financial markets and sesks to minimise potential adverse sffects on
the Group's financial performance, The Group uses derivative financial instruments o
hedge certain risk exposures.

(a) Warket price risk

Market price risk is the risk that the valua of a financial insfrument will fluctuate as a
resull of changes in markal prices, whather those changes are caused by faclors
specific to the individual instrument or factors affecting all instruments in the market,

The Group trades in financial instruments, taking positions in exchange traded
instruments to take advantage of shorl lerm market movements in the fulures markets.
The Group i exposed 1o market price risk on all of #s financial instruments. The Group
manages risk by conducting screening and fundamental research during the investment
selection process.

At 31 December 2010, the Group's market risk was affected by three main components:
changes in actual market prices, interest rate and foreign currency movements. Interest
rate and foreign curency movements are covered in Motes 3{t) and 3{e) below
respectively, The Group's market price risk is managed by seeking to moderate risk
theough a careful selection of securities within spacified limits.

-20-
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Financial risk management {Continued)

Market price risk (Continued)

The table below summarizes the Group’s net market price risk exposure.

Analysis of financial assets by products:

Financial assets held for trading
- Listed equities

Total financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Met (loss)/ gain on financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss =
held for trading

- Realised

- Change in unrealised

Total net {loss) gain

Analysis of financial liabilities by products:

Financial liabilities held for trading
- Listed equities
- Futures

Total financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss
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2010 2006

HKS HES

144 877,205 171,599,375
144, 577,305 171,598,375
2010 2008

HKS HK3

4 157 054 56,429,440
(9,645,688 21,591,086
(5,438,635) 78,020,495
2010 2009

HKS HES
53,736,850 2
77,254 -
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Financial risk management {(Continued)
Market price risk (Continued)

The following fabie shows the market exposure the Group has to varous industries,
incorparating the underying market risk through all financial assets / liabilties held by

the Group.
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
TR, 11 TP
% of nat
Listed equities - By industry Fair value assets
HES
Agricultural 4,412 865 1.40
Bank 3731372 1.18
Chemicals 2,380,201 1.07
Coal 12,722,255 4.02
Electric 1,971,200 062
Feminine Heallh Care 10,084.032 3.18
Food and Beverages 13,114,570 4.15
Hotels 11,113,215 3.5
Infrastructure 3,666,381 1.18
Insuranca 7174 858 227
Lighting products 1,628,057 0.52
Machinery-General Industry 4,307,943 - 1.36
il 6,275,274 1.98
Retail 28,734,304 2,40
Securily Services 1,000,650 032
Technology 8,487 406 3.00
Telzcommurication 4,328 810 1.37
Therapeutics 2,057 487 a8
Wire & Cable Products 4,393,530 139
144,577,309 48100
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
2010
% of net
Listed aquities — By industry Fair valug assats
HK%
Ajdines 11,757,743 372
Builkding & Construclion 11,758,750 avz2
Finance servicas 4,524 458 1.46
Insurance 2,610,052 0.83
Machinery-General Industry 6,822,978 2.16
il 10,598,391 335
Real Estate : 5,556 509 176
R3.736.887 00
Hang Seng [ndex rT.247 o0z
14 144 JL02

-99.
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CSOF ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Financial risk management (Continued)
Market price risk [Continued}

Financial assets at fair valua through profit or loss

2009
Listed equities — By industry “ of net
Fair value aszels
HiR

Basic materia's 20,966,005 10.00
Technology 43,612,038 14.55
Enengy 4B.647,000 186.23
Food and beveragas 15,860,497 527
Media 14,080,002 4.69
Retail 7,704, 002 280
Industrial 548931 1.82
Litilities 1,784,084 0.60
Infrastructure 4,408,395 1.47
171,588,375 o723

The table below summarises the impact of increases/decreases of the benchmark index
to which the Group is comparing with, The analysis s bazed on the assumption that the
index had increasedidecreased by the respeclive percentage and the Group's
investments moved according to the historical correlation with the index. This analysis s
dependent on higtorical data and tharefore relies on the appropriateness of the data set
being used,

2010
Change in Impact on
market Met Assels
incex % HES
Hang Seng China Enterprises
Index = 20% +/- 28,340,883
2008
Change in Impact on
market Met Azsets
index % HKS
Hang Seng China Enterprises
Index +-20% +- 16,054 458

Changes in benchmark index % are revised annually depending on management's
current view of market volatility and other relevant factors.

Actual movements of the reasonable possible shift may be greater or less than
anticipated due to a number of factors, including unusually large market shocks resulting
from changes in the performance of economizs and markels subseguent to the pericd
end in which the Group invests. As a result, the reasonable possible shift used for the
purposa of market price sk sensitivity analysis may not be a definitive indicator of future
variations in the risk variablas.
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CSO0P ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Financial risk management (Continued)

Market price risk [Continued)

The Group does not manags with reference to any market indices. The Group is also
not -directly comrelated with any market indices. The market index used in the abaove
table should be used solely for guidance purpose.

The exposures to individual investmants representing over 5% of the Group's nel asset
valua at 31 Decaember are as follows:

o of nat % of net
assets assets
2010 2008

Listed equities
Fushan Enargy ” 8.43
Kaisun Energy - 697
CHNC Int'l - 5.38

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a finansial instrument will fluctuate due to
changes in market interest rates

The Group is exposed to risks associated with the effects of fluctuations in the prevaiiing
levels of marked interest rates on its financial position and cash flows,

Ai 31 December 2010, the Group's net cash balance was HKE 165,822,678 (2009
HES34,677,726). A change in interest rate levels within the range foreseen by the Group
for the next twelve months is deemed not to have a material impact on the Group. For
example, if interast rates had besn 25 basis points higher or lower with all other
variables held constant, net assets attributable to holders of redesmable participating
shares would have been HKF 414,057 (2009: HKS 88634) higher or lower at 31
December 2010,

Counterparty risk

Counterparty risk is the risk a counterparty ta a financial instrument will cause the Group
financial loss by failing to discharge its obligations. The Group seeks to minimize this risk
of loss by careful choice of counterparties and by minimizing the reliance placed on
individual counterparties.

The Group maintains a list of approved brokers selected to manage the risk that a broker
may fail and lead to a loss on trade. All transactionz in listed invesiments are setlled on
a delivery versus payment basis using approved brokers, The risk of default is
considered minimal, as delvery of securities sold is only made when the Group's
custodian bank has received payment. For a purchase, payment is made once the
sacurities have baen receivad by the Group's custodian bank. The frade will fail if sither
party fails to meet their obligation.

Bank balances are placed with reputable financial instilutions,
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Financial risk management (Continued)
Counterparty risk {Continuad)

The table below summarizes the aseels placed with the custodian and broker as at 31
December:

2010
Credit
HES Rating Source
Bank
ICBC {Asia) 185,622 678 A-2 Moody's
Custodian
Goldman Sachs 162,712,090 A1 S&P
Total 328,334,768
2008
Cradit
HKS Rating Source
Custodian
ICBC {Asia) 34877726 A-2 S&p
B
GF Securities (HK) Brokerage Limited 60,757 808 Note {a) Bap
Orental Patron Financial Group 1,706,376 Note (&) S&P
Hai Tong Securiies (HK) Brokerage
Limited 5 Mole (a) SaP
Huatai Financial Holdings (HK) Limited 5,591 837 Maote {a) B&P
Morgan Stanley & Ca. Intl Ple 32,362,141 A B&P
Total 135,495,883
Mote (a):

These brokers are corporations licensed by the Heng Kemg Securitizs and Fulures
Commission. The directors do not perceive significant credit risk with these entities.

The directors consider the Group's expasure to counterparty risk to be minimal,

Liquidity risk

The Group is exposed 1o ligudity risk when it encounters difficulty in meeting obligations
associated with financial [iakilities. It manages liguidity risk by maintaining sufficianl cash
and cash sguivalents,

The table below analyses the Group's and the Company's financial liabilities. The
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows, Balances

due within 12 months equal their carrying balances, as the impact of discounting is not
gignificant,
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
3 Financial risk management (Continued)

(d)  Liguidity risk (Continued)

Less than
1 year
Group HK$
At 31 December 2010
Trade and other payables 20,018 604
At 31 December 2008
Trade and other payables 10,926,681
Cméaﬂy
At 31 December 2010
Trade and other payables 4,708,638
At 31 December 2009
Trade and other payables 10,678,204

(e) Currency risk

The funclional currency of the Group is the HK dellar. The Group is therefore exposed to
currancy risk, as the value of the assets danominated in other cumrencies will fluctuate
due to changes in exchange rates.

The nominal currency denomination of the Growp's equity assets is determined by the
cumency of the stock axchange on which the investment trades and hence is only parily
a guide to the Group's cumency exposure,

Hong Kong dollar is currently pegged to the US dollar and as such the Group is not
exposed o significanl curency risk.

if) Fair valua estimation

The Group adopted the amendment to HKFRS 7, effective 1 January 2009, This requires
the Group to classiiy fair value measuremants using a fair value hierarchy that reflects
the significance of the inputs used in making the measuremeants. The fair value hierarchy
has the following levels:

. Queted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assels or liabilities
flevel 1),
- Inputs other than guoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the

asset or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived
from prices) (level 2).

- Inputs for the asset or liabilty that are not based on cbhservable market data (that
is, unobservable inputs) (level 3).

-6
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Financial risk management {Continued)
Fair value estimation (Continued)

Tha level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement is
categorised in its entirely is delermined on the basis of the lowest level input tha? is
significant to the fair value measurement in its antirety. For this purpose, the significance
of an input is assessed against the falr value measurement in its entirety. If a fair value
measurement uses observable inputs that require significant adjustment based on
unobservable inputs, that measurement is 3 level 3 measuramant. Assessing tha
significance of a parlicular input to the fair value measurement in ts entirety requires
judgment, considering factors specific to the asset or liability.

The determination of whal constitutes “"obsarvable” reguires significant judgment by the
Group, The Group considers cbservable data lo be that market data that is readily
available, regularly distribuied or updated, reliable and verifiable, nat propriefary, and
provided by independent sources that are actively involved in the ralevant markeat,

The following table analyses within the fair value hierarchy the Group's financial assets
and liabilities (by clazs) measured at fair value at 31 December 2010

Lawvel 1 Lawvel 2 Leval 3 Total balance
HKS HKS HEKS HKS
Assets
Financial assels at fair vabue
through profit or loss:
- listed aguities 144 577 305 - - 144 577 305
- unlisted embeddead
derivative - - 40,267,150 40,267,150
Avaijlable-for-sale  financial
assets:
- unlisted equities . - 7,768,400 7. 768 400
Liabilities
Financial liabifties at fair
walue through profit or loss:
- listed eguities (53,735,880} - - 153,736,890)
- futures (77,254) 3 . (¥7.254)
Met financial assets 20,763,161 - 48035550 138,798,711
By
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CSOF ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Financial risk management (Continued)
Fair value estimation {Continued)

The foliowing table analyses within the fair value herarchy fhe Group's fimancial assats
and liabilities {by class) measured at fair value at 31 Dacembear 2000

Lavel 1 Level 2 Leval 3 Total balance
HEE HES HKE HES
Assets
Financial assets held for
trading:
- listed equities 171,588 375 - - 171,589 375
Total financial assets 171,588,375 - - 171,589 375

Investments which values are based on quoted market prices in active markats, and
therefore classified within level 1, include active listed equilies and exchange fraded
derivatives. The Group does not adjust the quoted price for these instruments.

Financial instruments that trade in markets that are not considered to be active but are
valued based on quoted market prices, dealer guatations ar alternative pricing sources
supported by obsarvable inputs are classified within level 2. These include over-the-
counter derivatives. As level 2 investmenls include positions that are not traded in aclive
markets andl/or are subject to transfer restrictions, valuations may be adjusted to reflect
ilfgquidity and/or non-transferabllity, which are generally basad on available market
information.

Invastments classified within level 3 have significant unobservable inputs, ag they trada
infrequently. Level 3 instruments include unfisted sacurities. As abservable prices are not
available for these securties, valuation techniques are used to derive the fair value.

The following table presentis the changes in level 3 instruments for the year ended 31
December 2010,

Embedded derivative at  Available-for-
fair value through profit sale financial

or loss assets Total
Opening balance - - -
Transfers into level 3 38,500,000 T.768,400 46268400
Galns and losses recognized
in prefit or loss 1,767,150 - 1,767,150
Closing balance 40,267,150 7,766,400 48,035,550
Total gaing or losses for the
perind including in profit or
loss for assets held al the
end of the reporting period 1,767,150 - 1,787.150

There is no level 3 instrument for the year ended 31 December 2009,
-28-

236/265



EDINETOOOO
OO00D0O00o0O00D0bDO000DO0Odnoo(E27318)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Income Tax Expense — Group and Company

Hong Kong profils tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2008 16.5%) on the
estimated assessable profit for the year.

2010 2009
HKS HKE

Current income fax
Hong Kong profits tax 285,129 12,308,081
Taxation charge 295,139 12,308,081

The tax on the Group's and Company's profit before tax differs from the theoretical
amount that would arise using the lax rate of the home country of the Group and
Company as follows:

2010 2003

HKS HK$
Profit before {ax 16,306,116 74,584,548
Tax calculated at local rate of 16.5% (2009: 18.5%) 2,590,509 12,372 451
Income not subject to tax {B4,273) [135,435)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 3,152,510 71,085
Cwearprovision of tax in prior yaar {5,453 807) -
Tax charge 295,139 12,308,081

-29.
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Praperty, plant and equipment — Group and Company

Group and Company

Leasshold
Furniture Office improve-
and fixtures aquipment mers Tatal
HES HES HKS HKS
Year ended 31 December
2009

Cpening nat book amount 105,153 471,718 588,200 1,165,071
Additions - 108,614 - 108,614
Deprecialion (21,3300 (147.944) (261,422)  (430,698)
Closing net book amount 83,823 432,368 326,778 B42,989
At 31 December 2008
Cost 112,263 598,377 543,416 1,354,058
Accumulated depreciation {28 440) [165.989) (316.,838) {511,067)
Mei bock amount 53,823 432,388 226,778 842,889
Year ended 31 December
2010
Opening net bock amount 83,823 432,388 326,778 842,989
Additions - 303,252 572571 875823
Depreciation (21,3300 {203,881) (417 578) (642,769)
Closing net book amount 62,4093 531,779 481,771 1,076,043
At 31 December 2010
Cost 112,263 g01,629 1,215,987 2,228,879
Accumutated depreciation 48,770} (363,850) (734.218) (1,153.836)
Met book amount G2,493 531,779 481,771 1,076,043

- a3 -
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CSOP ASSET MAMAGEMENT LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Investment in a subsidiary — Company

2010 2009
HKS HKS
Unlisted investment in a subsidiary, at fair value 182,079,063 111,408,376
The following is the subsidiary at 31 Decembear 20170
Principal activities Particulars of
Flace of and place of issued Intarast
Nama incorporation ocparation shares held held
CS0OP Cayman Invest in the Greater 211,332 out of 81%
Graater Islands China Region to 261,332 redeamahle
China pursue absolute participating sharos
Absolute returns and to achieve  with par value of
Returm Fund medium to long-term 530,001 per share
capital appreciation
CS0OP Agset Cayman Dormant 1 issued share with 100%
Management Islands par value of HK$1
{ BVI) Ltd per share

Available-for-sale financial assets

On 1 Decamber 2010, the Company has invested USS1, 000000 or HKST 768 400 in
EJF Greater China Master Fund, Ltd. for 10,000 shares at US5100 each. EJF Greatar
China Master Fund, Lid. seaks fo invest portions of its assels in securities that are listed,
quoted or traded on stock markets in Hong Kong, Taiwan, Singapore and the United
States; with respect of Greater China Investment.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

On 24 May 2010, the Company (the “Subscriber™) has purchased a convertible bond
issued by Huscoke Resources Holding Limited (the "issuer") for a consideration of
HK$38,500,000. The convertible bond s a senior unsubordinated and secured
convertible bond in the aggregate principal amount of HK$3E,500, 000 with interast of 5%
per annum to be issued by the Issuer in favour of the Subscriber. The maturity dais is 3
years after date of purchase, 24 May 2013. The fair value of the converiible bond at year
end is HK$40 267 150,

-39 -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Trade and other receivables - Group
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The carrying amounts of trade and other recaivables, which approximate to their fair

valyes, are as follows:

2010 2009

HKS HK3

Amount due from brokers 18,134,785 100,818,167
Deposita 1,398,794 1,322,875
Prepayments 583,428 TE6 845
Accrued interest income 437 437 -
Other accounts receivable 517,530 -
21072572 102,807,790

The carryving amounls of the Group's trade and other recelvables are dencminated in the

fallowing currencias:

2010 2008
HES HES
HIK dellar 17,724,412 102,279,253
US dellar 3,348,580 628,537
21,072,972 102,807,790

Cash and cash equivalents — Group and Company

Group Company
2010 2008 2010 2008
HKS HIKE HKS HKS
II:aSI'I at bank and in hand 165,622,678 34,877 728 34,102,504 14,903,534
165,622,678 34,877,726 34102504 14,803,534
Maximum exposure to credit

risk 165,622,678 34877726 34,102,504 14,803,534

Share capital — Group and Company

The authorized number of ordinary shares is 200,000,000 shares (2009: 200,000,000
shares) with a par value of HK one dollar per share {2009: HK one dollar per sharg). All

Issued shares are fully paid.

-8
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CS50F ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Other reserves — Group and Company

Group
HES
Balance at 21 December 2009 43,922
Currency translation differcnces 424,339
Balance at 31 December 2010 468,261
Company
HES
Balance at 31 December 2009 18,320,338
Revaluation reserve — fair value gain in investment in a subsidiary {11,044, 5381)
Balance at 31 Dacember 2010 7,345,947
Cash generated from operations - Group
Reconciliation of profit befors tax to net cash usad in operating activities:
2010 2009
HES HHES
Profit before income tax 16,306,116 78,131,307
Adjustments for:
- Depreciakion 842 789 430,696
- Interest income (1,529,014) (44,010
= Dividend income (1,350,869) {844 579}
- Interast expense 13,752 =32
- Gurreney transiation difference (7,496) 13,646
- Increase in fair valus of convertible bonds (1,767,150

- Decreaze/l (increase) in rade and other receivables B2 272 285 (102 021,980}
- Decreasel (increase) in amount due from

immeadiate holding company 501,383 (13,503,066}
- Increase in accrued charges 315.289 570,359
- Increase/ (decrease) in amount due to a director - (18,139)
- Increase/ (decreasa) in amount due to the uitimate
holding company - (875,560)
- Increass in trade and other pavables 2082923 10,826,681
Cash generated from/ (used in} operating activities 104,089,948  (27,032,576)
-33.
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Commitments — Group
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The Group leases office, siaffl quarter and direcior's quarer under non-cancellable
oparaling lease agreaments. The lease tarms are bebwveen two and a half years to three

2009
HKS

3,404,088
1,205,986

years.
The fulure aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
are as follows:
2010
HKE
Mot later than one year 4 684,500
Later than one year but not later than five years 4,234,890
8,899,390

Related party transactions - Group

The Group carried out the following transactions with related parties:

Nobe 2010
HKS
Diractor's emalument 7,451,022
Year-end batances arising from related party
fransactions:
- Amount due from immadiate holding
company {a) 13,001,703
MNote (&)

4,793,384

2008
HKS

7.464,176

13,503,088

These amounts due fromfo related paries are unsecured, interest-iree and have no

fixed repayment tarms.

Directors’' emoluments - Group

The remuneration of Directors for the year endec 31 December 2010 is set oul below:

2002
HKF

2,800,000
4,000,000
864,178

2010

HKS

Remuneration 5,509,290
Discretionary bonuses 1,203,000
Other benefils = quarter 748,732
7.461,022

7,464,178
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C50P ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Approval of financial statements

The consolidated financial statements ware approved by the Board of Directors on 28"
February, 2071.

-35-
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HSBC ( ) (HSBC Institutional Trust Services (Asia)

Limited)

() (2012 12 18 ) 50,000,000 571,000,000

() 29
HSBC

(China Southern Fund Management Co. Limited)

() (2012 12 18 ) 150,000,000 2,125,500,000
()
(Oriental Patron Asia Limited)
() (2012 25 ) 12,000,000 137,040,000
()
? (The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited)
(2012 12 18 ) 58,968,707,252.5 673,422,636,824 10,233,500,000
906,074,090,000
()
HSBC

HSBC ( ) (HSBC Bank (China) Company Limited)
() (2012 12 18 ) 12,400,000,000 175,708,000,000
()

?
ABN AMRO (ABN AMRO Clearing Hong Kong Limited) ( )

(China Merchants Securities (HK) Co., Limited)
(Citigroup Global Markets Asia Limited) UBS (UBS Securities Hong Kong
Limited) ( ) (Credit Suisse Securities (Hong Kong) Limited)

(Deutsche Securities Asia Limited)
(Goldman Sachs (Asia) Securities Limited) (Haitong
International Securities Company Limited) ( ) (J.P. Morgan
Broking (Hong Kong) Limited) (Merrill Lynch Far East Limited)
( ) (Nomura Securities (Hong Kong) Limited) (Oriental
Patron Securities Limited) ( ) (Standard Chartered Bank (Hong
Kong) Limited) ? (The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited)
*
ABN AMRO (201

2 19
(ABN AMRO Cl ealring HooNg300, 00D
Kong Limited) 3,075,404, 000 )
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( ) (China (2012 30 )
Mer chants Securitiles (HKQOOKCo00Q0, 0pPO
Limited) 22,840,00p, 000 )
(2012 29)
301,951, 249D
(Citigroup Gl obal Mar ket 8, AdiBa 283, 161 )
Limited)
UBS (201120 31}
(UBS Securitiels Hon4g3 Xoh@o, 00P
Limited) 4,910,600, 000 )
(201122 )
( ) (Credit [Suiss®30,902,000p
Securities (Hong Kong) LiemiotedpP0qd, 840 )
(2012 )
(Deut sche Selcurilt,izetgd4, 089, 2pO0
Asia Limited) 14,435, 89B, 664 )
(201112 2%
( Gol dlman 31,094,981
Sachs (Asia) Securlities Rimbt3ed49, 618 )
(Haitong (2012 )
I nternational Seculritil,s5(Ch, Gah,y0p O
Li mi)ted 17,130,00p, 000 )
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(2012 )
( ) (J.P. |[Morglanls53, 365, 6pP0O0
Broking (Hong )Kong|) Limit3,dl71, 43p, 152 )
(201112 1%
(Merrill Lynchl Far HBE&s®©0O00, 000
Li mi)ted 194,140,000 )
( ) (2012 23)
(Nomura Secur|lities (H&@n@o?o
Kong) Limited 23
3,200, 00p, 000
(Orient all (2012 )
Patron Securi)ties [Limited®&, 000, 000
228,400,000 )
(2012 30)
( ) (Standar|d 96, 856, 932
Chartered B k (Holng Kong) 106, 104, 163 )
Limited)
? (The Hongk (201122 18] )
ong and Shanghai BlankiBn®68, 707, 252. 5
Corporation Limiteld) 673,422,636, 824 )
10,233,500,[(000
906,074,090, 000 )

(Citigroup Global Markets Asia Limited) UBS
(UBS Securities Hong Kong Limited)

HK

( )

) (Credit Suisse Securities (Hong Kong) Limited)
( ) (China Merchants Securities (HK) Co., Limited)
(Deutsche Securities Asia Limited)
Limited)

HK

(Credit Suisse Securities (Hong Kong) Limited)
Trading Hong Kong Limited) UBS

( )

(Bluefin HK Limited)

(Bluefin HK Limited)

(Nomura Securities (Hong Kong)
(Optiver Trading Hong Kong Limited)

( )

(Optiver

(UBS Securities Hong Kong Limited)

(Deutsche Securities Asia Limited)

(2012 11

)

(Nomura Securities (Hong Kong) Limited)

(2012 29)

301,951, 24D
(Citigroup Gl obal Mar ket 8, AdiBa 283, 161 )
Limited)
UBS (201120 31}
(UBS Securitiels Hong3 Koh@o, 00pP
Limited) 4,910,600, 000 )
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( 201112 )

( ) (Credit| Sui s®s3*0, 902, 000p
Securities (Hong Kong) LiemiotedP®P0q, 840 )
H K (Bl uelfin (2012 26)

HK Limited) 6,170,000
70,461,400 )

( ) (China (2012 30)
Merchants Securitiles (HKQOOOC00Q0, 0PO
Limited) 22,840, 00p,000 )

(2012 )
(Deut sche Selcurilt,izagd4, 089, 2P0
Asia Limited) 14, 435,898,664 )
( ) (2012 23)

(Nomura Secur|lities (H&n@®?O0

Kong) Limited) 23
3,200,00p, 000

(2012 16)

(Optiver Tlrading@3,500,000
Hong Kong Limited) 268, 370,000 )
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(HK Conversion Agency Services Limited)

—~ o~
~— ~—

UFRJ

( ETF
( )
29 )
Provident Fund Schemes Authority)
MPF HSBC
(HSBC Holdings plc)
(@)

(b)

(A)

HSBC

(Mandatory

(Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance)

( )
HSBC

(@) (b)

(Euro-clear Clearing System Limited)

(Clearstream Banking S.A.)

(B)

Department of the Treasury)(OFAC)

OFAC

OFAC OFAC

HSBC OFAC
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